% o

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public

Decision Session - Executive Member for Transport and Planning

To: Councillor Dew (Executive Member)

Date: Thursday, 16 August 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039)
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on this
agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by 4:00 pm on
Monday 20 August 2018.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a previous call
in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not subject to the
call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered by the Customer
and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Tuesday 14 August 2018.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to declare:

e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which he may have in respect of business on this agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



Minutes (Pages 1-12)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have registered
to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 5.00pm on
Wednesday 15 August 2018. Members of the public can speak on
agenda items or matters within the Executive Member’s remit.

To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officers for the
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered public
speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast can be
viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if recorded, this will be
uploaded onto the Council’s website following the meeting.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors and
Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This includes the
use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone wishing to film,
record or take photos at any public meeting should contact the
Democracy Officers (contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in
advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner both
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all those present. It can
be viewed at

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol for webcasting
filming and recording of council meetings 20160809

EPetition: “Approve More Houses for Lower (Pages 13 - 34)
Income Residents in York”

This report outlines the approach proposed to respond to an EPetition
entitled ‘Approve more houses for lower income residents in York’,
which was submitted by a local resident.


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809

Consideration of Two Residents Parking (Pages 35 - 48)
Petitions: Main, First & Second Avenues and
Balmoral Terrace

To report the receipt of two petitions, one in relation to Main, First and
Second Avenues and the other in relation to Balmoral Terrace, and to
determine what action is appropriate in each case.

Strensall to Haxby - Danger Reduction Scheme (Pages 49 - 86)

This report updates the Executive Member on the investigation into
reducing the speed limit and introducing traffic calming on the rural
roads between Haxby and Strensall, following receipt of a petition. It
also includes the results of a consultation exercise with local ward and
parish councillors with regard the proposed scheme.

Consideration of results from the consultation (Pages 87 - 106)
in Sussex Road and immediate area following

a petition received requesting Residents'

Priority Parking

The report sets out the consultation results undertaken in May for
Sussex Road, Sussex Close and the affected properties which have
frontages/access onto the proposed area.

Submission of Definitive Map Modification (Pages 107 - 126)
Order "The Council of the City of York Public

Footpath, Knapton No.4 (Grange Lane to

Rufforth Airfield)"to the Secretary of State for

Determining also requests that the Secretary of

State change the Order Route from Footpath to

Restricted Byway.

The report advises the Executive Member that a number of objections
have been received to the above Definitive Map Modification Order
(DMMO) on the grounds that Grange Lane was a public road and
should properly be recorded on the definitive map as a restricted byway
rather than a footpath. The Executive Member is asked to request that
the secretary of state modifies the order to show Grange Lane as a
public restricted byway when it is sent to the Planning Inspectorate for
determining.



9. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officers:

Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share)

Contact details:
e Telephone —(01904) 551031
e Email catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and louise.cook@york.gov.uk
(If contacting by email, please send to both Democracy Officers named
above).

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officers responsible for servicing this meeting:

e Registering to speak;

e Business of the meeting;

e Any special arrangements;

e Copies of reports and;

e [or receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
Bt AEMIESIRAEEEISE (cantonese)
92 B2 AR NS S I (AT AT | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
2 e ) G T e (Ura)
T (01904) 551550



mailto:catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk
mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk

City of York Council

Page 1 Agenda Item 2

Committee Minutes

Meeting

Date

Present

In Attendance

Decision Session - Executive Member for
Transport and Planning

12 July 2018

Councillor Dew (Executive Member for
Transport and Planning) and Councillor
Waller (Executive Member for Environment
and Deputy Leader)

Councillors Carr, D’Agorne and Warters

Declarations of Interest

The Executive Members were asked to declare, at this point in
the meeting, any personal interests not included on the Register
of Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests
that they might have in respect of the business on the agenda.
They confirmed they had none.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the
Executive Member for Transport and Planning held
on 14 June 2018 be approved and signed by the
Executive Member as a correct record.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been eight registrations to speak
at the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Peter Sheaf spoke on behalf of the York Cycle Campaign in
relation to agenda item 4 (A Bike Share Scheme for York). He
advised that there was strong support from the York Cycle
Campaign for the introduction of a Bike Share Scheme in York,
with a preference for a docked scheme over a dockless one,
due to concerns over bikes being dumped and blocking streets.
He asked that the scheme be introduced in as flexible a way as
possible, with flexible payment options and suitable and



Page 2

conveniently located bikes. He offered to work with the council
on the introduction of the scheme.

Clir D’Agorne spoke in relation to agenda item 4 (A Bike Share
Scheme for York) stating that the introduction of the scheme
would promote the practical benefits of cycling but expressed
the view that finding suitable locations for bikes as part of a
dockless scheme may be more difficult to manage and needed
to be looked at carefully. In relation to agenda item 9
(Consideration of results from the consultation in Rosedale
Street and surrounding areas following petitions received
requesting Residents’ Priority Parking) he gave his general
support for the officer recommendation. He advised that the
high cost of permits had put people off from neighbouring
streets but due to the knock on effect asked that the decision
included a fast track review and a second ballot for the excluded
streets 6 months after implementation if they decided they
needed a scheme. With regard to the yellow lines on Rosedale
Street opposite the end of Grange Garth he suggested there
was space for marked parking bay in addition to what was
already identified as part of proposals. If provision was agreed
for weekdays only, he suggested this be from 8am to take
account of refuse collections.

Cllir A Waller spoke in relation to agenda item 5 (Street Lighting
Policy Update). He circulated a photograph of Westfield Ward
which showed examples of new street lights which have been
positioned within tree canopies or in close proximity to trees
which raised legacy issues as it would be some years before
these were due to be replaced. He asked the Executive Member
to ensure the system for replacing lights was flexible with regard
to where new columns were located. He also advised that there
was a problem with the system for reporting faulty lights and
asked officers to look into this.

Cllr M Warters also spoke in relation to the Street Lighting
Policy Update. He expressed concern that the revised policy
would remove Ward Councillors, Parish Councillors and
residents ability to have any say in the number, siting,
aesthetics and quality of street lighting in their area. He also
raised concern that the 2014 street scape guidance would be
lost and that the proposed revised policy sought to impost 6m
high columns outside city’'s historic core with no regard to



Page 3

aesthetics and the impact on imposing these on streets of
bungalows and terraced streets.

Darryl Smalley addressed the Executive Member, on behalf of
local residents, in relation to agenda item 6 (Petition requesting
that the Council adopt streets on a Persimmon Homes estate,
including Arlington Road and Tamworth Road). He commended
officers on the report and voiced residents support for the
adoption of the roads on the estate. He expressed his thanks on
behalf of local residents for the hard work which had been done
to date and asked if an adoption date could be given.

Mark Grant, of Portland Consulting Engineers, spoke in relation
to agenda item 7 (Lysander Close: Proposed Amendment to the
Traffic Regulation Order) on behalf of his client, Inchape Retalil
who would operate the car dealership being constructed on
Lysander Close. He drew the Executive Member's attention to a
photograph which showed the extent of parking on the street
which prevented access to other industrial units as well as theirs
and asked that parking restrictions be extended to the end of
Lysander Close as detailed in the report.

Catherine Laing, a local resident, spoke with reference to
agenda item 9 (Consideration of results from the consultation in
Rosedale Street and surrounding area following petitions
received requesting Residents’ Priority Parking) in relation to
Respark in Hartoft Street. She expressed her support for
residents parking which she felt would reduce the amount of
traffic in the area, making it safer for everyone and improving air
guality. She explained that residents feelings towards Respark
were mixed due to the high cost of permits.

Councillor D Carr, spoke with regard to agenda item 11
(Pedestrian Crossings — Review of Requests). He advised that
the areas marked as crossings on the map were not currently
perceived as such, due to lack of signage and road markings.
He also expressed concern that the proposed timber bollards
could easily be damaged by brewery and food delivery vehicles
and taxis dropping off and manoeuvring outside the pub as this
had happened in other locations. He asked officers to consider
amending the proposed bollard material to something which
was more robust.



Page 4

A Bike-share Scheme for York

The Executive Member for Transport and Planning and the
Executive Member for Environment considered a report which
proposed the introduction of a ‘Bike Share’ scheme for York.
The report updated Members on changes which had occurred in
the bike share sector over the last two years and reflected on
how the industry had developed across the UK. It highlighted
how such a scheme might be introduced in York and asked the
Executive Members to give their support for the appointment of
an industry partner who would deliver a bike share scheme
which met the standards required by the Council and its key
partners.

Officers advised that on 3 July they had attended the York Walk
and Cycle Forum to give a brief presentation and to address
guestions arising. Attendees had included representatives from
the York Cycle Campaign, York Blind and Partially Sighted
Society and York Civic Trust. Attendees had been asked to
direct any further comments to officers for them to consider
incorporation into the tender documents subject to the decision
made at this meeting.

Officers informed the Executive Members that a bike share
scheme should be targeting modal shift, dissuading short
journeys by car. To achieve modal shift, some of the bike hubs
should be located in the York district centres such as Tang Hall,
South Bank and Acomb to better enable trips for shopping,
leisure, personal business and to work. Furthermore the
location of any dock less bike parking should be clear in so that
people with disabilities, including the blind and partially sighted
community were not impeded.

Officers provided an industry verbal update in order that the two
Executive Members were aware of developments in London and
elsewhere in the country including Leeds. They acknowledged
York Cycle Campaign’s preference for a docked scheme but
advised that this was not the recommend option due to issues
around finance and space.

The Executive Member for Environment noted that there had
been an interesting discussion from a wide range of groups at
the York Cycle Forum Meeting and comments which had been
made, noting concerns from the Blind and Partially Sighted
Society that bikes left in unfamiliar positions would pose a



Page 5

danger to those with sight impairments. He noted the pressure
to park bikes in the city centre and stated that racks which had
previously been removed were in the process of being put back
into the city centre. He stressed the need to engage with a wide
range of people before the contract was agreed and asked that
the scheme to be brought back to the Executive Members
before it was implemented. He asked that safeguards be
included to prevent risk of harm to public safety or the
environment.

The Executive Member acknowledged that although the
dockless system was not favoured by York Cycle Campaign, it
was the option recommended by officers for the reasons given
in the report and confirmed at the meeting.

Resolved: That the Executive Member for Transport and
Planning, in consultation with the Executive Member
for Environment, approve Option B as follows:

()  Agree to the undertaking of a procurement
exercise to secure a dock-less bike share
scheme for York for an initial one year period.
The scheme must not require ongoing public
sector revenue to ensure its continued
operation;

(i)  Delegate authority to officers to agree the
detailed specification of the scheme with the
following key York partners (LNER, University
of York, York NHS Trust and York St John
University) and with the preferred Scheme
provider and,

(i)  (a) Agree to undertake further consultation
and, as appropriate, incorporate
representation in the interview stage of the
procurement from the following groups: Make
it York, The York Bid, York Walk and Cycle
Forum, and The York Cycle Campaign and,

(b) In preparation of the tender documents,
seek views from the following groups:
e groups representing people with
mobility impairments (such as the



Page 6

York Blind and Partially Sighted
Society)

e representatives from bike retailers

e representatives from Como UK (the
body representing much of the bike
share industry

e parties implementing counter-
terrorism measures

(iv)  Agree to build in safeguards into the scheme
which would allow the scheme to be withdrawn
in the case of evidence or harm to public
safety or to the environment.

(v) Agree that the proposed scheme is brought
back to the Executive Member for final
approval before implementation.

Street Lighting Policy Update

The Executive Member considered a report which proposed
updates to the Street Lighting Policy to reflect changes identified
as part of a recent review. The key changes were to strengthen
the policy about sensitive areas of the city and differentiate
between the historic core and conservation areas, and to
improve the policy with regards to managing the risk between
trees and lamp columns. The review had also highlighted that
the Street Lighting Policy and the Streetscape Strategy and
Guidance did not give consistent advice and that the
Streetscape Strategy and Guidance needed updating and
should be confirmed as guidance only.

The Head of Highways and Fleet and the Assistant Director,
Transport, Highways and Environment were in attendance at
the meeting. In response to concerns raised during public
participation officers confirmed that if moving a lighting column
from the front to the back of the pavement would mean it was
impeded by trees, this would not be done. In relation to
consulting with Ward Members, officers noted that a balance
needed to be struck — if one lighting column needed replacing, it
would be replaced to match with the surroundings as stated in
the policy, without consultation, however if lighting needed to be
replaced on a whole street, they would be happy to consult with
the relevant ward councillors.



10.

Page 7

The Executive Member expressed the view that, due to the
number of comments which had been received in relation to the
policy, the updated policy should be referred to scrutiny so that
scrutiny members had the opportunity to comment on the
proposed changes before bringing it back to the Executive
Member for approval. He noted that the Streetscape Strategy
and Guidance also needed updating and that this could go
ahead as planned.

Resolved: (i)  That the redrafted Street Lighting Policy be
referred to the relevant scrutiny committee for their
consideration prior to coming back to the Executive
Member for approval.

(i)  That a review of the Streetscape Strategy and
Guidance take place as planned and that officers be
advised to treat the Streetscape Strategy and
Guidance as guidance only.

Reason: To ensure a proportionate and consistent approach
to the management of street lighting across the city.

Petition requesting that the Council adopt streets on a
Persimmon Homes estate, including Arlington Road and
Tamworth Road

The Executive Member considered a report which provided an
update on progress towards the adoption of streets on a
Persimmon Homes estate including Arlington Road and
Tamworth Road in response to a petition received.

Officers advised that they had agreed with Persimmon what
repairs and updates were needed to bring the streets up to
adoptable standard and remedial works to the roads/footpaths
had been completed as well as landscaping work. Work to the
sewerage system had also been addressed. The only remaining
issue was that of highway drainage. Road gullies had been
cleaned out and found to be largely acceptable but with a few
defects and officers were currently liaising with Persimmon to
determine whether they would remedy these themselves or
agree a sum for the council to rectify them. In terms of a
timeframe, officers were unable to give exact date but advised
that the adoption should be concluded later in the summer.



11.

Page 8

Resolved:

(i)  That the recent progress on progressing towards adoption
of the streets (as shown in Annex B to the report) be
noted.

(i)  That the verbal update on progress given provided at the

meeting be noted.

(i)  That upon completion of the adoption of the streets (as

per the plan annexed to the report), officers will notify the
lead petitioner, the ward councillors and Executive
Member.

Reason:

()  This will respond to residents request to adopt the streets
concerned.

(i)  To provide a comprehensive and up to the minute picture
and provide assurances as to the timeline for adoption.

(i)  To confirm that the adoption has been completed.

Lysander Close: Proposed Amendment to the Traffic
Regulation Order

The Executive Member considered a report which sought
approval to advertise waiting restrictions on Lysander Close. He
noted that authorisation had recently been given for restrictions
to be implemented on part of the access route on Lysander
close and that the remaining part of unrestricted access suffered
from obstructive parking during the working week at all times
and this could worsen after implementation of the new
restrictions. He acknowledged the developer’s request to extend
the ‘no waiting at any time restrictions’(double yellow lines) to
cover the remaining carriageway to keep the footway and
access to the new dealership for the larger transporter vehicles
unobstructed.

Officers advised that, due to the current state of the road, the
agreed restrictions (double yellow lines) had not yet been
implemented and that, if no objections were received to the



12.

Page 9

proposal to extend the restrictions, the restrictions could be

implemented on the whole road at the same time.

Resolved: (i) That Option 1 be approved: to advertise a
proposal to amend the York Parking, Stopping and
Waiting Traffic Regulation Order to introduced
waiting restrictions on Lysander Close as outlined in
Annex A to the report.

(i)  That authority be given to officers to
implement as advertised if no objections are
received.

Reason: To remove obstructive parking for access to
business outlets and footway parking.

Turner Close & Huntington Road: Proposed Amendment to
the Traffic Regulation Order - Consideration of objections
received

The Executive Member considered a report which asked him to
consider the representations received to the recently advertised
waiting restrictions on Turner Close and Huntington Road.

Officers advised the Executive Member that a representative of
Vets 4 Pets had registered to speak at the meeting under the
public participation scheme but had been unable to attend. They
drew the Executive Member’s attention to their objection which
was outlined in the report and confirmed that although it had
been proposed to shorten the length of waiting restrictions at the
vehicle access points on the western side of Turner Close to
provide additional parking and to implement a reduced length of
restrictions on Huntington Road, they still objected to the
scheme.

The Executive Member acknowledged that officers had listened
to residents’ concerns and made necessary amendments to the
proposals and were recommending implementing a shortened
length of waiting restrictions on both Turner Close and
Huntington Road.

Resolved: That Option 1 be approved, to advertise a proposal
to amend the York Parking, Stopping and Waiting
Traffic Regulation Order to:



13.

Page 10

() Implement as advertised with a reduced length
of waiting restrictions on the west side of
Turner Close as outlined in Annex B to the
report

(i)  Implement a shorter length of waiting
restrictions on Huntington Road as outlined in
Annex B

Reason: To remove obstructive parking and improve sight
lines whilst taking into consideration the objections
received during the consultation process

Consideration of results from the consultation in Rosedale
Street and surrounding area following petitions received
requesting Residents' Priority Parking

The Executive Member considered a report which presented the
results of the consultation undertaken in April for Rosedale
Street and the surrounding area to determine what action was
appropriate following petitions received requesting Residents
Priority Parking.

He acknowledged the views of residents who had submitted
written representations and the local resident and Ward Member
who had spoken earlier in the meeting in relation to this item
under public participation.

The Executive Member acknowledged that the officer
recommendation was in line with the majority of residents’
opinions. Officers advised that, in response to a request from
residents, two additional parking spaces could be provided on
Rosedale Street. The Executive Member confirmed he was
happy with this as long as it did not compromise access for
refuse collection vehicles.

Resolved: (i)  That approval be given to advertise an
amendment to the Traffic Regulation Order to
extend the R20 Residents’ Priority Parking Area to
operate 24 hours, 7 days a week in Rosedale Street,
Grange Garth and to include 154 Fulford Road
within the R20 property Boundary. Officers to
amend the recommended option to provide
additional space for 2 vehicles on Rosedale Street



14.

15.

Reason:

Page 11

as long as this does not compromise access for
larger vehicles (refuse wagons).

(i)  That no further action to be taken for Farndale
Street, Hartoft Street, Lastingham Terrace and
Levisham Street. Officers are authorised to re-
consult in this area if further representations are
received within 18 months from the implementation
of a scheme on the neighbouring streets. This
consultation to take place in priority to other areas
on the current waiting list.

To progress the majority views of the residents
consulted

Directorate of Economy & Place Transport Capital
Programme - 2018/19 Consolidated Report

The Executive Member considered a report which identified the
proposed changes to the 2018-19 Economy and Place
Transport Capital Programme to took account of carryover
funding and schemes from 2017-18, and new funding available
for transport schemes. The report also provided details of the
2017-18 Economy and Place Transport Capital Programme

Outturn.

Resolved: (i)  That the carryover schemes and adjustments

Reason:

set out in the report and annexes be approved.

(i)  That the increase to the 2018/19 Economy &
Place Transport Capital Programme, following
the approval of the Corporate Capital
Programme Outturn report by Executive in
June 2018, be noted.

To implement the council’s transport strategy
identified in York’s third Local Transport Plan and
the Council Priorities, and deliver schemes identified
in the council’s Transport Programme.

Pedestrian Crossings - Review of Requests

The Executive Member considered a report which sought his
approval to implement proposals to improve pedestrian crossing



Page 12

facilities at various locations throughout York. The report
included a summary of the objections raised against some of
the schemes (including a petition for Wetherby Road)

The Acting Transport Projects Manager was in attendance at
the meeting and took the Executive Member through the
proposed schemes listed in Annex C to the report and
responded to any questions.

In response to the comments raised by the Ward Councillor for
Copmanthorpe under public participation about the bollards
proposed for Main Street Companthorpe, officers explained that
they had proposed timber bollards for the crossing as these
were considered to be more sympathetic to the local
environment, however more robust bollards could be used
instead and they agreed to consult Copmanthorpe Ward and
Parish Councillors with regard to using steel ones if this was
feasible.

In relation to the petition submitted raising concerns over the
bus stop being located outside the Sun Inn on Acomb Green,
officers advised that the only service which would use the stop
would be the infrequent Wetherby/Rufforth service which would
drop off bus users at the stop.

Resolved: That the following proposed schemes, as shown in
Annex C to the report, be approved for
implementation.

()  Heworth Green

(i)  Huntington Road

(i)  Main Street, Copmanthorpe
(iv) New Lane, Huntington

(v)  University Road, Heslington
(vi)  Wetherby Road, Acomb Green

Reason: The proposals serve to provide much needed
Improvements to crossing facilities at various
locations within York, where requests for
improvement had been made.

Clir P Dew, Executive Member for Transport and Planning
[The meeting started at 2.00pm and finished at 3.20 pm].



Page 13 Agenda Item 4

COUNCIL

,

Decision Session — Executive Member for 16 August 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director for Planning and Public
Protection.

EPetition: Approve More Houses for Lower Income Residents in
York

Summary

This report outlines the approach proposed, to respond to an EPetition,
entitled ‘Approve more houses for lower income residents in York’, which
was submitted by a local resident on 12" April 2018.

Background

The EPetition was submitted to the Council on 12" April 2018. The
petition as submitted had 1,011 signatories as at 11/04/18 and currently
remains open for people to sign.

The petition states:

“We hereby call on City of York Council to change it's planning
permission procedures, making applications for planning permission to
build/ convert luxury flats or student accommodation harder to
encourage property developers to instead focus on more housing for low
to medium earners, who make up a much larger proportion of the
population than the luxury flat market. Rents and house prices in York
are amongst the highest in the North of England, and the Council needs
to address this by fixing the mix of accommodation approved.”

A full copy of the EPetition with selected quotes from the petition is
attached as Annex A to this Report.

The Council’'s guidance on petitions / EPetitions requires that where they
contain more than 10 signatories, they must be added to the Council’s



10.

Page 14

Petition Schedule and considered by the Executive Member at a
Decision Making Session where relevant. As the EPetition had 1,011
signatories on it at the time of submission to the Council, it has been
entered on the Council’s Petition Register, to be dealt with through the
relevant process.

The EPetition is asking the Council to adjust the planning rules to restrict
the amount of luxury flats and student accommodation in the city and to
focus the housing mix more on affordable housing and family homes.

The resident’s accompanying letter further states “With the Local Plan
set to /ock in all of the city’s biggest brownfield sites in for the
foreseeable future, it has never been more important to look at the mix
of housing in York right now”.

Options
Officers are asking the Executive Member to note the petition.
Analysis

The EPetition refers to both proposals to develop land and the granting
of planning permission. Consideration has therefore been given to the
information relevant in both the Local Plan process and separately, the
planning application process.

The Local Plan process does not in itself grant planning permission but
sets locally determined policies that support the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF). Planning applications are determined separately
following the statutory process for determining applications, which
includes public consultation. The determination of planning applications
will not necessarily be at the same time as the Local Plan adoption but
the submitted Local Plan is a material consideration in planning decision
making. In the context of para 216 to the NPPF the emerging Plan can
be afforded weight according to:
a. The stage of preparation of the emerging plan;
b. The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies, and;
c. The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging
plan to the policies in the Framework.



11.

12

13.

14.

15.

Page 15

National Planning Policy

The current NPPF seeks to ensure that local housing needs are met
through the provision of a range of house types and sizes based on
current and future demographic trends, market trends and the differing
needs of the various sectors of the community. Authorities are required
to identify the size, type, tenure and range of housing that is required in
particular locations reflecting local demand. In addition, it requires
councils to set policies for meeting identified affordable housing need
and that those policies should be sufficiently flexible to take account of
changing market conditions.

The Government released a revised National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) on 24™ July 2018 and requires that it is used as a
material consideration in planning decisions from its publication. This
revised NPPF similarly includes requirements for affordable housing,
housing mix and type of accommodation. Local authorities are still
required to build an evidence base on this matter and input this into
development plans, such as the Local Plan. It is important to note that
the revised NPPF also has a transition period of 6 months to ensure that
progress is not hindered on plans already in the final stages of
preparation or at examination. Plans submitted prior to January 2019 will
be judged against the original NPPF.

York’s New Local Plan

York’s Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Examination in Public on the 25" May 2018. This follows
comprehensive consultation between 2013 and 2018 and the
development of a comprehensive evidence base underpinning the
policies within the document.

As required by the NPPF, the Local Plan has considered in detail issues
relating to housing mix and affordable homes. The Council
commissioned a Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2016) and
subsequent addendums (2016 and 2017) to consider these issues in
detail and to inform housing policies within the plan.

The SHMA considers that for both market and affordable housing there
Is a need for a mix of house sizes across the city and suggests that the
focus of new housing provision should be on two and three bed
properties reflecting the continued demand for family housing and the



16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 16

demand from older persons wishing to downsize but still retain flexible
accommodation.

Accordingly, the SHMA has underpinned policies in the plan to meet
these requirements. A summary of the applicable policies in the Local
Plan are (see Annex C):

H3: Balancing the Housing Market — focussing on housing mix and
requiring residential development to balance the housing market by
including a mix of types of housing which reflect the diverse mix of need
across the city. Applicants are required to demonstrate this with
evidence for their proposals.

H10: Affordable Housing — seeking to provide affordable housing as part
of residential development with an increasing percentage of provision
corresponding to the development size. Further this policy supports
pepper potting of development throughout the residential scheme and
mixed tenure. In addition, the policy requires that affordable housing
provided should remain affordable in perpetuity. Where a developer
believes the criteria cannot be fully met, they have the opportunity
through open book appraisal to demonstrate to the Council’s satisfaction
that the development would not be viable.

Complementary policies are also included for Promoting self build and
custom house building (H4) and provision of Older Persons
Accommodation (H9) wherein the Council support the provision of new
homes as well as homes for those with specialist housing needs.

Further, Policy H7: Student Housing requires the University of York and
the York St John University to address the need for any additional
student housing which arises because of their future expansion of
student numbers. In assessing this need, consideration would also be
given to the capacity of independent providers of bespoke student
housing in the city.

All of these policies were consulted on within the Pre-Publication draft
Local Plan (Regulation 18) between 18" September and 30" October
2017. The consultation responses were reported with proposed
changes to the Plan to Members at Local Plan Working Group
(23/01/18) and Executive (25/01/18) . Members agreed to proceed to the
next stage of the Local Plan process and consequently the Publication
Consultation (Regulation 19) commenced between 215 February- 4™
April 2018.



20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 17

In line with the Regulations, all of the responses received to the
Regulation 19 consultation were submitted with the plan to be
considered by our appointed Planning Inspector(s) directly, including any
representation made in relation to the above policies. These policies will
be considered with regard to these representations at the forthcoming
Local Plan examination.

Paragraph 182 of the NPPF states that the Local Plan will be examined
by an independent inspector whose role is to assess whether the plan
has been prepared in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, legal and
procedural requirements, and whether it is sound”. The ‘tests of
soundness’ against which the plan will be assessed consider whether
the plan is:

e Positively prepared — the plan should be prepared based on a
strategy which seeks to meet objectively assessed development
and infrastructure requirements, including unmet requirements
from neighbouring authorities where it is reasonable to do so and
consistent with achieving sustainable development;

e Justified — the plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when
considered against the reasonable alternatives, based on
proportionate evidence;

e Effective —the plan should be deliverable over its period and
based on effective joint working on cross-boundary strategic
priorities; and

e Consistent with national policy — the plan should enable the
delivery of sustainable development in accordance with the
policies in the Framework.

Although the petition was received outside of the Publication
consultation and is therefore non-duly made in respect of the Regulation
19 consultation, we acknowledge that it is clearly linked to the policies in
the Local Plan. We have consequently submitted the petition to the
appointed Inspectors as a non-duly made representation . The
programme officer has subsequently confirmed that the Inspectors will
not be considering this as part of the examination as it is not considered
directly relevant to an issue of either soundness or legal compliance.

Planning Application Process

Planning applications are determined in accordance with national and
local planning policy. Currently, the NPPF and the Local Plan Approved



24.

25.

26.

27.

Page 18

for Development Control Purposes (2005) are material planning policy
considerations. In addition, the Local Plan (Publication version (2018))
as submitted can be afforded weight in accordance with paragraph 216
of the NPPF which attributes weight based upon:
d. The stage of preparation of the emerging plan;
e. The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies, and;
f. The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging
plan to the policies in the Framework.

In addition, Members specifically endorsed interim targets for Affordable
Housing setting out the thresholds at which affordable housing must be
provided and the commuted sum payment structure in lieu of an adopted
Local Plan. This was based on:

e our Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVS) (2010)

e targets approved at the Get York Building Executive in August
(2014)

e changes to national planning guidance following the Court of
Appeal dated 11 May 2016, which gave legal effect to the policy
set out in the Written Ministerial Statement of 28 November 2014

The details of the endorsed interim targets are provided at Annex B. The
interim targets have formed the basis for determining and negotiating the
deliver y of affordable housing on schemes where development is
above the threshold for provision until recently. Following Submission of
the Local Plan, Policy H10: Affordable Housing, which is informed by the
SHMA (SHMA 2016), has gained more weight than the interim targets
and will be applied when considering applicable applications (see Annex
C).

The aforementioned Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2016)
provides up-to-date evidence base to reflect current market trends and
requirements for housing mix and affordable housing. This is therefore
also a material consideration in planning applications to negotiate the
delivery of affordable housing on applicable development sites.

Next Steps

Policies in relation to housing mix and affordability as set out in the Local
Plan will be considered as part of the Examination in Public. Any



28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 19

modifications agreed through the Examination will be subject to further
public consultation in due course.
Council Plan

The course of action outlined above accords with the following priority
from the Council Plan:

e A council that listens to residents
Implications
The following implications have been assessed.

Financial — None;

Human Resources - None;

Community Impact Assessment — None;
Legal — None

Risk Management
None.
Recommendations

It is recommended that the Executive Member:
(i) notes the content of the EPetition

Reason: It is considered that the policy position in the emerging
Local plan, which is based on a sound evidence base, will guide
development and inform the consideration and determination of
planning applications.



Page 20

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Rachel Macefield Mike Slater

Forward Plan Manager Assistant Director for Planning and

Tel: 551356 Public Protection

Alison Cooke Tel: 551300

Development Officer

Forward Planning

Tel: 551467 Report | Date
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s):

Alison Hartley, Senior Solicitor, Planning

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
Brief Guide to dealing with Petitions

Glossary of Abbreviations
None

Annex A: E Petition entitled ‘Affordable Housing in York’

Annex B: Interim Affordable Housing Targets

Annex C: Policies H4 and H10 from the Local Plan Publication version
(2018) submitted for Examination on 25" May 2018.

Abbreviations used in report:

AHVS Affordable Housing Viability Study
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
SHMA Strategic Housing Market Assessment



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6444/petitions_scheme

Page 21 Annex A

Mary Weastell
CE City of York Council

12/04/2018

Dear Ms Weastell,

Please find enclosed a summary for my petition on affordable housing in York, where we call on City
of York Council to adjust the planning rules to restrict the amount of luxury flats and student
accommodation in the City, and to focus the housing mix more on affordable housing and family
homes. | feel this petition represents the voice of the people of York who are frustrated and angry at
the high rents, high house prices and lack of social housing in York Central. Please follow the link in
the enclosed summary and read the comments from the signatories, as | feel some of these
comments paint the situation and feeling of residents {and ex-residents, as some have been priced
out of the City) more than the numbers can.

With the York local plan set to lock in all of the City’s biggest brownfield sites in for the foreseeable
future, it has never been more important to look at the mix of housing in York than now.

if you would like to discuss the housing situation, | would be more than happy to give my insight.

Kind regards,




. Page 22 ,
Petitioning p%y ot York Council Annex A
Approve more houses for lower income residents in York

https://www.change.org/p/city-of-york-council-approve-more-houses-for-lower-income-residents-in-york

Find the petition online with this QR code

|| [m

We hereby call on City of York Council to change it's planning permission procedures, making applications for planning per-
mission to build/ convert luxury flats or student accommodation harder to encourage property developers to instead focus on
more housing for low to medium earners, who make up a much larger proportion of the population than the luxury flat mar-
ket. Rents and house prices in York are amongst the highest in the North of England, and the Council needs to address this
by fixing the mix of accommodation approved.

1,011 signhatures

As of 11/04/2018
Some quotes from affected locals:

My husband and | are first time buyers who live in York city centre. We are trying to buy a house but we are struggling to find some-

thing we can afford. We both live with my parents._ We used to rent but the cost was so high that we'd
never have saved for a deposit so we moved back to my parents. That was two years ago and we still can't afford to buy_

I work 5 days a week, have two jobs, am not a big spender, and spent nearly 4 months couch surfing because there was so littte afforda-
ble housing it had gone before | even got to a house viewing. At the same time one of my colleagues was living in his car_

[ couldn’t afford to live in my home city once | left my parental home. | was working as a police officer at the time and my husband was
working, too. It’s lousy when a place is too expensive to live in. People with lower incomes deserve a place to live and to be part of the

community
I am a dad of 2 with my partner and we are struggling to even get on the council list _

My family is priced out of the housing market despite being hard working people. We can’t even get accepted into the social housing
list so are trapped in the expensive private rental sector-

_work hard for York ambulance service They work long unsocial hours. Their salaries are eaten up by paying private
rental. We need affordable housing to give people like them to stay here in York. Why should peopie who were born here and work
here have to move away on order to have their own home? _

I'm a 30 year old resident of York, I've lived here my whole life and have no prospects of ever getting on the property ladder here--
My son & Daughter-inLaw have had to move towards Leeds to afford to buy - no family round them and a young baby - it's a disgrace—

| pay near 10k in rent per year to someone who owns multiple properties in the city. Properties now worth almost 3 times their initial
purchase price. | can't save enough. | can't buy. | watch more and more friends pushed out of the city. At this rate my children will only
be able to live here if they come back as students

Working 70 hour weeks just to afford somewhere to sleep is man. Private renting is sooo over oriced-_




Page 23

Annex B: Affordable housing planning guidance - interim targets

Source: City of York Council Webpage: -
https://www.york.gov.uk/info/20049/planning_advice_and_guidance/1148/affordable
__housing_planning_guidance_-_interim_targets

The following interim targets are currently in use for Development Management
purposes, based on:

« our Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVS) 2010

« targets approved at the Get York Building Executive in August 2014

« changes to national planning guidance following the Court of Appeal dated 11
May 2016, which gave legal effect to the policy set out in the Written
Ministerial Statement of 28 November 2014

Brownfield sites equal to or greater than 15 20%

dwellings

Greenfield sites equal to or greater than 15 30%

dwellings

Urban sites less than 15 dwellings 0%

Rural sites 11 to 14 dwellings that have a Off site financial contribution =
maximum combined gross floorspace of more £23,133.80 per unit (20%)

than 1,000m?

Rural sites 5 to 10 dwellings that have a maximum  Off site financial contribution =
combined gross floorspace of more than 1,000m? £17,350.35 per unit (15%)

Rural 2 to 4 dwellings that have a maximum Off site financial contribution =
combined gross floorspace of more than 1,000m? £11,566.90 per unit (10%)

o the above targets and thresholds will be relevant to any applications not
currently 'determined'

e existing applications have the right to submit a 'deed of variation' to S106
agreements, in line with current policy

Less than 15 homes in rural areas

Following the change to national Planning Guidance, the council can no longer seek
financial contributions towards affordable housing on rural schemes of 1 to 10 units
with a gross area of no more than 1,000m?. Planning obligations on affordable
housing and other matters can only be applied to schemes of 11 new homes or more
or 1 to 10 new homes with a total gross floorspace of more than 1,000m?.

Download a flowchart which illustrates when affordable housing is to be provided on
rural sites.



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8752/affordable_housing_viability_study
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=34049
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/judgment-paves-way-to-build-more-homes-on-small-sites
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/judgment-paves-way-to-build-more-homes-on-small-sites
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/November%202014/28%20Nov%202014/2.%20DCLG-SupportForSmallScaleDevelopersCustomAndSelf-Builders.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/pas-topics/infrastructure/s106-obligations-overview
https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/pas-topics/infrastructure/s106-obligations-overview
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11494/york_affordable_housing_flowchartpdf

Commuted payment

Page 24

The commuted payment is calculated by the ‘average York fixed RSL price' being
subtracted from the 'average York property price' then multiplied by the '% target'.

Dwelling Average York

threshold property price (Land
Registry August
2012)

2to 4 £180,502

homes

5to 10 £180,502

homes

11to 14 £180,502

homes

Average York Commuted
fixed RSL payment
price

£64,833 10% £11,566.90
£64,833 15% £17,350.35
£64,833 20% £23,133.80

If the threshold is triggered, OSFC is payable on a site-by-site basis:

Site size (number of dwellings) | % target | Off site financial contribution

© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

e N T
w N B O

14

N/A
10
10
10
15
15
15
15
15
15
20
20
20
20

N/A

£11,566.90

£23,133.80 (2 x £11,566.90)
£34,700.70 (3 x £11,566.90)
£69,401.40 (4 x £17,350.35)
£86,751.75 (5 x £17,350.35)
£104,102.10 (6 x £17,350.35)
£121,452.45 (7 x £17,350.35)
£138,804.00 (8 x £17,350.35)
£156,153.15 (9 x £17,350.35)
£231,338.00 (10 x £23,133.80)
£254,471.80 (11 x £23,133.80)
£277,605.60 (12 x £23,133.80)
£300,739.40 (13 x £23,133.80)

Individual site assessments




Page 25

Given the conclusions reached in the Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVS),
developments within York should be able to provide the target levels of affordable
homes approved for Development Management purposes. Therefore, no individual
site assessment will be required where submissions achieve these targets and this is
to be encouraged in order to reduce time on further analysis and negotiation.

For all site thresholds, the developer still has the right to pay for and submit an
independent ‘'open book appraisal’ to justify circumstances where the target is not
considered to be viable. Such appraisals will be carried out by the Valuation Office
Agency (VOA) and be paid for by the developer.

Section 106 and Nominations Agreements - sample Heads of Terms

Section 106 sample heads of terms and Nominations Agreement sample heads of
terms have been set, following extensive consultation with developers and
Registered Providers. These will be customised for each scheme. Please get in
contact with the planning case officer or a member of the Housing Development
team if you would like to discuss further.

Approach to affordable housing policy in York

The Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVS) along with other key evidence bases
will inform the development of the Local Plan.

An affordable housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) will:

e support the AHVS

e give clear and consistent guidance

e react to changing circumstances, such as new housing need and mix

e give detailed information and advice on the operational approach to affordable
housing policy in York

« explain the York 'dynamic model' used to change the short term targets
annually

e explain the process of negotiation

e manage on-site expectations related to integration and quality, tenure mix,
subdivision of sites, application of grant, nomination criteria and viability
assessments

Affordable housing advice note
The Affordable Housing advice note forms non-statutory guidance to supplement the

policies and proposals of the Local Plan (2005) incorporating the fourth set of
changes and:

e provides guidance and advice on how to include affordable housing in
development schemes

e is aimed at all groups involved in developing affordable housing (council
officers, developers, landowners, parish councils, registered providers and
local interest groups)


http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8752/affordable_housing_viability_study
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/valuation-office-agency
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/valuation-office-agency
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/13779/cyc_s106_sample_heads_of_terms
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/13780/york_council_affordable_housing_nominations_agreement
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/13780/york_council_affordable_housing_nominations_agreement
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/8752/affordable_housing_viability_study
https://www.york.gov.uk/info/20051/planning_policy/632/the_local_plan
https://www.york.gov.uk/info/20051/planning_policy/666/supplementary_planning_documents
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11492/york_affordable_housing_advice_notepdf
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/1302/view_the_local_plan_and_proposals_maps

Page 26

The Affordable Housing advice note has not been updated to include the interim
targets set out above, which were last approved in August 2014. This will be
replaced through the Local Plan. These supersede the targets in the advice note.



5.26

5.27

Page 27

Annex C: Policy Extracts from the City of York Local Plan
Publication draft (2018)

Policy H4: Promoting Self and Custom House
Building

As part of meeting housing need, proposals for self and custom house building, to be
occupied as homes by those individuals, will be supported where they are in
conformity with all other relevant local and national policies.

On strategic sites (sites 5ha and above) developers will be required to supply at least
5% of dwelling plots for sale to self builders or to small/custom house builders
subject to appropriate demand being identified. Plots should be made available at
competitive rates, to be agreed through Section 106 agreements, which are fairly
related to the associated site/plot costs. In determining the nature and scale of
provision the Council will have regard to viability considerations and site-specific
circumstances.

These schemes wiill:

e be individually designed employing innovative approaches throughout that cater
for changing lifetime needs;

e provide for appropriate linkages to infrastructure and day to day facilities; and

e include a design framework to inform detailed design of the individual units
where more than one self/custom build unit is proposed.

Where a developer is required to provide self and custom build plots the plots should
be made available and marketed for at least 12 months. Where plots have been
appropriately marketed and have not sold within this time period these plots may be
built out as conventional plots for market housing by the developer.

Communities preparing Neighbourhood Plans will be encouraged to consider the
identification of sites for self and custom build projects within their neighbourhood
plan area.

See also Policy D1

Explanation

The Council is seeking to find new ways to deliver the homes York needs. This
policy is intended as a mechanism for supporting self and custom build
development in appropriate locations as sought in national policy. This policy
approach will strengthen and grow the local economy and workforce, increase
annual delivery rates on site and result in a more varied and locally distinctive
development form. The Council will maintain a local register of self builders who
wish to acquire a suitable plot of land to build their own home, to evidence demand.

A self build scheme should be genuinely innovative in the use of materials,
methods of construction and its contribution to protecting and enhancing the




5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

Page 28

environment. The value of such a building will be found in its reflection of a high
standard of contemporary architecture, the enhancement of its immediate setting
and sensitivity to the defining character of the local surrounding area. Opportunities
for pooled renewable energy facilities should be utilised where possible.

Where developable plots are demonstrably and appropriately marketed at
competitive rates for a period of 12 months without interest, they may revert to
delivery through conventional methods. Developers will be required to demonstrate
to the local planning authority that appropriate marketing has taken place before self
and custom build plots can be released for development through conventional
market housing.

Planning permissions relating to self-build plots will require self build developments
to be completed within three years of a self-builder purchasing a plot. Self or custom
build housing is subject to the policy requirements of the Local Plan, including
affordable housing; housing mix and density; older people's housing; space
standards; and design and planning obligations

Further guidance from the government on self build is expected. The council will
review the need to publish additional local guidance/supplementary planning
guidance relating to the practical delivery of self/custom build sites. Any future
updates of this evidence will be published on the council’s web site.

Definitions of Self and Custom Build

For the purpose of this policy self house builders are being defined as, someone who
directly organises the design and construction of their new home i.e. DIY self build
home. This can also include: projects where the self builder commissions an
architect/ contractor to build their home; projects delivered by kit home companies;
or community led projects where the community organises construction work.

For the purpose of this policy custom build projects are where someone who works
with a specialist developer to help deliver their new home. In this scenario, the
custom builder may secure the site for you and manage the build of your home.

For the purpose of this policy the terms custom and self build relate to a range of
dwellings which may be based on:

o Self build homes: Where a person manages the design and construction and
may undertake some of the building work or contract it to others;

« Contractor built homes, after deciding on a design, a contractor is employed to
do all of the building work;

e Independent community collaboration where a group of people acquire a site
and split into plots for self build homes, which may include sharing labour and
expertise; and

e Supported community self build where a social landlord or a similar supportive
body helps people build a group of homes together.

For the purposes of this policy small house builders are defined as being a company,
joint venture or delivery vehicle which, alone or in conjunction with any parent or
partner organisation, has delivered an average of fewer than 200 residential units



5.35

Page 29

per annum over its last five operating years. Preference should be given in selection
process to those small house builders who are unlisted and who have been
established in the York or Yorkshire area for more than two years.

Homes built to a customer’s specification by a developer, based on a range of their
designs do not represent a custom-build home.

Delivery
e Key Delivery Partners: Developers.
e Implementation: Planning applications.

Policy H10: Affordable Housing

To help maximise affordability across the housing market, the Council will support
residential schemes for 2 or more dwellings which:

i. reflect the relative viability of development land types in York by providing
affordable housing percentage levels for site thresholds as set out in Table 5.4:

Table 5.4: Affordable Housing Site Thresholds

Threshold Target ‘
Brownfield sites = > 15 dwellings 20%
Greenfield sites = > 15 dwellings 30%
Urban, Suburban and Rural sites 11-14 1
. 20%

dwellings

Urban brownfield sites 5-10 dwellings® 15%"
Urban greenfield sites 5-10 dwellings® 19%"
Urban brownfield sites 2-4 dwellings? 6%*
Urban greenfield sites 2-4 dwellings® 10%*
Sub-grbagl brownfield sites 5-10 10%!
dwellings

Sub-t_eragl greenfield sites 5-10 15061
dwellings

Sub-urban brownfield sites 2-4 1

. 2 2%

dwellings

Sub-urban greenfield sites 2-4 dwellings? 7%
Rural brownfield sites 5-10 dwellings® 11%*
Rural brownfield sites 2-4 dwellings? that 3%*




5.60

Page 30

Rural greenfield sites 5-10 dwellings® 17%*

Rural greenfield sites 2-4 dwellings® 8%*

Notes to Table

1 This is the target percentage to be used in the off-site financial
contribution calculation following sub-clause (iii) below

2 For sites that have a maximum combined gross floorspace of more
than 1,000sgm

il on sites of 15 homes and above on-site provision will be expected, unless off-
site provision or a financial contribution of equivalent value can be robustly
justified.

iii. on sites of 2—15 homes an off site financial contribution (OSFC) is required in
accordance with the approved formula set out below:

Average York Property price — Average York Fixed RP Price x % Target =
OSFC per dwelling

iv. make provision which reflects tenure split in terms of social renting and
intermediate housing, as set out in the most up to date SHMA.

v. fully integrate the affordable housing by pepper potting throughout the
development with no more than two affordable dwellings placed next to each
other. The size and type of homes should be a pro rata mix of the total homes
provided on site, taking into account current assessments of local need where
on-site provision is required. The affordable housing should be visually
indistinguishable from the open market dwellings.

A vacant building credit (VBC) will be applied to appropriate development where a
vacant building is either converted or demolished and is necessary to incentivise the
scheme. This credit will be equivalent to the gross floorspace of the building to be
demolished or brought back into use. This credit does not apply when a building has
been ‘abandoned’.

The affordable housing should remain affordable in perpetuity, through use of a
planning condition or obligation or if these restrictions are lifted, for subsidy to be
recycled for alternative affordable housing. On completion, the affordable housing
must be transferred to a Registered Provider approved by the Council.

Where a developer believes the criteria set out in this policy cannot be fully met, they
have the opportunity through open book appraisal to demonstrate through open book
appraisal to demonstrate to the Council’s satisfaction that the development would not
be viable

See Policy GB4
Explanation

Thresholds

NPPF (2012) requires Councils to set policies for meeting identified affordable
housing need, and that those policies should be sufficiently flexible to take account
of changing market conditions.




5.61

5.62

5.63

5.64

5.65

5.66

Page 31

Given the conclusions reached in the City of York Affordable Housing Viability Study
(2010) and Annex 1 (2011) (AHVS) and the City of York Local Plan and CIL Viability
Assessment (2017), developments within York should be able to provide the target
levels of affordable homes approved for development management purposes.
Therefore no individual site assessment will be required where submissions achieve
these targets and this is to be encouraged in order to reduce time on further analysis
and negotiation.

Where a developer believes because of development viability that a site cannot meet
the requirements of the policy, the developer will be required to submit an open book
appraisal to justify any reduction from the target, at their expense. If agreement
cannot be reached on the appropriate level of affordable housing between the
Council and the developer it will be referred to the Valuation Office Agency at the
expense of the developer, to determine the viable level of affordable housing. If a
reduction is proven the Council may firstly seek Homes and Communities Agency
subsidy (or other public subsidy) to achieve the level and mix of affordable housing
consistent with the policy. If such subsidy is not available the Council may seek to
vary the tenure mix or types of units of the affordable component where appropriate
to assist in meeting the delivery of affordable housing objectives of the Council
before agreeing a reduction in the overall amount of affordable housing.

Types

Affordable housing in York includes social rented and intermediate housing provided
to specified eligible households whose needs are not being met by the open housing
market, and who cannot afford to enter that market. The definition specifically
excludes low cost market housing.

Tenure/Mix
The City of York Council SHMA and Addendum (2016) recommends an 80% social
and affordable rented and 20% intermediate split.

A full range of property sizes and types are needed to satisfy the affordable housing

needs of the city and providing small or poor quality accommodation will not be seen
as satisfying the policy. In order to help build mixed and sustainable communities the
affordable homes need to be pro-rata of the market homes, integrated within the site
and indistinguishable from the market housing on site.

The affordable homes need to be fully integrated within the development by pepper
potting throughout with no more than two affordable dwellings placed next to each
other. The exception to this is apartment blocks if they are to be transferred freehold
to Registered Providers. These affordable apartment homes should be provided in
an apartment block rather than pepper potted throughout the development. The size
and type of homes should be a pro rata mix of the total homes provided on site,
taking into account current assessments of local need where on-site provision is
required. The affordable housing should be visually indistinguishable from the open
market dwellings.



5.67

5.68

5.69

Page 32

The Council will make public any updates to the evidence on housing mix and tenure
split that is currently provided in the SHMA. Developers should consult the Council’s
web site prior to making any planning application to confirm the then current position
on this matter.

Provision

In accordance with national guidance affordable housing provision for sites of 15
homes and above will normally be expected to be provided on site. Following the
change to national planning guidance, the council can no longer seek financial
contributions towards affordable housing on rural schemes of 1 to 10 units with a
gross area of no more than 1,000sgm. Planning obligations on affordable housing
and other matters can only be applied to schemes of 11 new homes or more or 1 to
10 new homes with a total gross floorspace of more than 1,000sgm.

The commuted sum is calculated using the following formula and will be updated
annually:

Average York Property price — Average York Fixed RP Price x % Target =
OSFC per dwelling

Table 5.5: Commuted Payment Calculation

Average York

roperty price Average York Commuted
Dwelling threshold (F’Lanpd Ri’egistry fixed RSL [ o6 target [ 200 0

March 2017) price
Urban, Suburban
and Rural sites 11- £241,042 £75,000 20% £33,208.40
14 dwellings
Urban brownfield
sites 5-10 dwellings® £241,042 £75,000 15% £24,906.30
;Jitrggréirg?jr\]/\?eelllidngsl £241,042 £75,000 19% £31,547.98
;Ji:::gg?j\yvgﬁrgsl £241,042 £75000 6% £9,963
Urban greenfield
sites 2-4 dwellings® £241,042 £75,000 10% £16,604.20
Sub-urban
brownfield sites 5-10 £241,042 £75,000 10% £16,604.20
dwellings®
Sub-urban
greenfield sites 5-10 £241,042 £75,000 15% £24,906.30
dwellings®
Etee 510 dwelings? £241,042  £75000 11% £18,265
g;ﬁ'zﬂomgﬁi'ggsl £241,042 £75000 3% £4,981




5.70

5.71

5.72

5.73

Page 33

Rural greenfield
sites 5-10 dwellings*

Rural greenfield
sites 2-4 dwellings®

Note
1 For sites that have a maximum combined gross floorspace of more than

1,000sgm

£241,042 £75,000 17% £28,227

£241,042 £75,000 8% £13,283

Any other off site provision or commuted payment in lieu of on-site provision for
affordable housing will only be acceptable if it is robustly justified. The commuted
payment will be calculated as the difference between the transfer price and the
market value of the specific home(s) on that site.

Artificial Subdivision

Artificial subdivision where it is proposed to phase development, sub-divide sites or
when there is a reasonable prospect of adjoining land being developed for residential
purposes in tandem or the future, the Council, will consider the whole site for the
purpose of determining whether the scheme falls above or below the thresholds

Vacant Building Credit

A VBC will be applied to appropriate development where a vacant building is either
converted or demolished and is necessary to incentivise the scheme. A viability
appraisal in accordance with this policy is considered to be consistent with the
underlying intention of the vacant building credit in order to incentivise brownfield
development and, given the high need for affordable housing in York, may be the
most appropriate option when weighing up all material considerations. If VBC is
applied, this credit will be equivalent to the gross floorspace of the building to be
demolished or brought back into use. This credit does not apply when a building has
been ‘abandoned.

A Supplementary Planning Document will be used to set out clear and consistent
guidance on all elements covered by Policy H10 and Policy GB4, including the
mechanism for updating the OSFC annually.

Delivery
e Key Delivery Partners: Housing Associations; Registered Providers; and
Landowners.

e Implementation: Annual review of the dynamic viability model; use of planning
obligations or conditions to secure provision; and planning applications.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35 Agenda ltem 5
YORK

ZX city oF
& COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 16 August 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Corporate Director of Economy and Place

Consideration of Two Residents’ Parking Petitions

Summary

1. To report the receipt of 2 petitions and determine what action is
appropriate in each case.

Recommendations

Main, First and Second Avenues

2. ltis recommended that:

e Option 2 - That the street is added to the Residents parking waiting
list and an investigation carried out when it reaches the top of the
list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents concerns in the order they
are raised and can be progressed depending on funding available each
year.

Balmoral Terrace

3. Itis recommended that:

e Option 4 - That the area is added to the Residents parking waiting
list, Danesmead Close item, and an investigation carried out when
the item reaches the top of the list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents concerns in the order they
are raised and can be progressed depending on funding available each
year.

Background — Main, First and Second Avenues

4. The petition has been signed by residents of the 3 streets — a total of 32
signatures representing 29 properties. A copy of the petition covering



10.

Page 36

letter and petition header is shown in Annex Al and a plan of the area is
in Annex A2.

These streets are all residential, though they are adjacent to East parade
which has several commercial properties along its length. This area is
roughly 1 to 1% km from the outskirts of the city centre which would be a
reasonable walking distance for some commuters. The existing R30 zone
is close by and includes part of East Parade, hence it may be appropriate
to consider expanding R30 to include these streets and to include the rest
of East Parade and Bull Lane in the initial consultation.

Background — Balmoral Terrace

The petition is 29 standard letters from residents of Balmoral Terrace.
These indicate 13 are in favour of residents parking, 11 are against and 5
are undecided. Whilst this might be viewed as only marginally in favour
clearly there is an interest and further investigation would seem
appropriate. The street is mainly residential but there are also several
commercial premises. There has been a recent increase in residents
parking provision in the immediate area. Hence, it may be appropriate to
consider expanding the existing zones and include those streets / areas
adjacent which might end up surrounded by residents parking schemes
during the initial consultation.

Background — General information

There has been an increase in demand to become part of a residents
parking zone in the last 2 years or so. This increase in demand has
resulted in a waiting list (see Annex C) for investigating new requests.
Each request is investigated in the order the request was made and will
be dependant on funding availability.

The process and likely timescales for investigating and implementing a
scheme is also outlined on the waiting list in Annex C. In the event of
additional petitions being received from adjacent streets then they would
be grouped together in the investigation and consultation in order to better
represent the views of the wider community.

Options for Consideration

Main, First and Second Avenues

Option 1 — Note the petition but take no action. This is not the
recommended action.

Option 2 — Approve for inclusion on the residents parking waiting list to
consult on advertising a proposal This is the recommended action
because this responds to residents concerns.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 37

Balmoral Terrace

Option 3 — Note the petition but take no action. This is not the
recommended action.

Option 4 — Approve for inclusion on the residents parking waiting list to
consult on advertising a proposal This is the recommended action
because this responds to residents concerns.

Consultation

At this stage there is no consultation but when the area reaches the top of
the waiting list there will be a 2 stage consultation process. Firstly,
information on how a scheme operates is sent out to all properties
together with a questionnaire, the results of which are reported back to an
Executive Member meeting for a decision on how to proceed.

If approval to proceed is granted then the formal legal Traffic Regulation
Order consultation is carried out.

Council Plan

The above proposal contributes to the Council Plan 2015-2019 in respect
of the following key priorities:

e A prosperous city for all,

e A council that listens to residents
Implications
This report has the following implications:
Financial — None at this stage.

Human Resources — None at this stage but if proposals are taken
forward to implementation there will be additional areas for the Civil
Enforcement Officers to patrol.

Equalities — None.

Legal — before a residents parking scheme can be implemented the
correct legal procedure has to be gone through.

Crime and Disorder — None
Information Technology - None

Land — None



Page 38

Other — None
Risk Management

17. . None.

Contact Detalls

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Alistair Briggs James Gilchrist

Traffic Team Leader Assistant Director Transport

Dept. Transport

Tel: (01904) 551368 Report v Date: 2/7/2018
Approved '

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
None.

Wards Affected: Heworth, Micklegate

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:
None.

Annexes:

Annex A1 Main, First and Second Avenues covering letter and petition header
Annex A2 Plan of the Main, First and Second Avenues area

Annex B1Balmoral Terrace covering letter and petition header

Annex B 2 Plan of the Balmoral Terrace area

Annex C Residents parking waiting list



Page 39

Annex Al

Main, First and Second Avenue Petition

| understand that several other people have already entered into correspondence with you about the current
parking situation in Heworth. | am particularly concerned with our own street Main Avenue and also Second and
First Avenue

We have lived here for over 30 years now and have seen a gradual increase in the number of folk parking in this area
during the day, and in the evening,who are not residing in the streets. Recently a car was parked without any
movement for at least 10 days and it has now simply been moved further along the road and again no sign of any
movement for 14 days .One of my neighbours said that they knew that this car has been advertised for sale. So it is
simply been parked here until it is sold. We have a lot of folk parking here in the morning, then going off to work,
leaving the car all day. Then on an evening folk come and park and walk away to their homes outside our area.

It is really becoming a major issue. If you go to the supermarket then return you inevitably can no longer park close
to your home to unload. Neighbours have invited visitors only to find that they then have to park streets away and
unload children and bags. If you are due to have any workmen come to your home it’s very hard for them to park
their vehicle to attend your property. Then of course there are those folk who really should not be behind a wheel as
they cannot park! Across drives, on footpaths! It's quiet ridiculous some days.

| decided a while ago to look into the possibility of trying to sound out local opinions and see if we can apply for
residents only parking. | have been around the area gathering people’s thoughts and enclose some signatures on a
petition of folk who would support such a scheme

It was an interesting exercise as some folk would support it if the cost were lower. We found that one lady was
already paying £300 per year to park at her place of work so she would be reluctant to pay again to park at her home
.Other people felt that it might just not work as they think that people who have permits for another area could still
park in our streets. We found that the majority of folk felt that it was an area of concern for them, but not all were
ready to sign this at the moment. They needed more information. One or two neighbours have even considered
moving house as this issue has become such a problem

| understand that the next step, if you consider that enough people would wish to discuss the possibility of residents
only parking, would be for the council to arrange to meet local residents to gather opinions for themselves

Can you please consider the possibility of moving this forward, as we would like to see the issue resolved

Thank you

Petition for Residents only Parking in Main, First and Second
Avenues Heworth York

We the Undersigned wish to

i petition the council to consi ibili
establishing a Suitable Residen ider the possibility of

ts Only Parking scheme in Main First and Second
Avenue Heworth



Page 40

Annex A2

Plan of Main, First and Second Avenue Area

27 ! "\%’\‘
P
g Z) o - " Q) ¥
" ‘ )“ \\(\\\\\\\\ \
G - \\
A “Glen |

i '{‘o ‘ ‘\“/
\ 5%\;\\

3

X

R . wdihs B g
< »Mast,, LT AT R s ="
CASSRESRE ) — 3 |
A /’,‘/ .l\ (O =apD AT _Y, “‘.' i o 1\ =__{ §
7+ R30 TN, A o
/ .‘Ef: Yt b!!-!-h-!-ﬂfé | !!l““‘-:nj;
s | Lo\ ‘

7 HIX1S




Page 41

Annex Bl

Balmoral Terrace Petition

| am following up to our previous correspondence with yourself by email, about the possibility
of the priority residents parking scheme been introduced in our street. we have now got
together some figures as to what the residents feel if a such scheme was introduced. it has
been mixed opinion with a slight majority agreeing that it should be implemented.

| would therefore ask if you would consider our street to be listed for consultation about
becoming a priority residents parking zone.

The problems in our street have worsened since the introduction of the new zone R58. This
has pushed the commuters to park in our street all day, and we have noticed an increase of
cars and vans parking overnight that don’t belong to residents in our street.

Since we are still in the early days of the impact of the R58 zone been introduced, should we
be placed on the list, by the time this process gets to the point of the residents been
canvased by yourselves, | believe the numbers supporting the scheme will increase.

| have enclosed a copy of the letters we sent and reply’s we have received, out of the 66
houses in our street we had 29 replies 13 agreeing, 11 against and 5 not commiitting either
way, even those against have agreed there is a problem but they just don’t want to pay for it.

| hope that if we are considered when you come to canvas in a more official capacity, that
you would get a better response.

| would appreciate if you could keep us updated as to any decisions and | look forward to
hearing from you.

Kind Regards



Page 42

Dear residents of Balmoral Terace

| would appreciate if you would take the time to read this letter and give us some feedback and your
opinion about the parking in our street.

| am sure you are all aware of how dificult it has becoms to park in our street recently, this has
increased since Some of our neighbouring strests have become subject to the resident's prarity
parking schames,

| have lived an this street for 27 years, in the last few years this problem has been getting increasingly
warse. | like most people have previously oblected to having o pay to park, but | have become 50
frustrated by the difficulty in parking, | would now be happy lo pay, to what | believe would increase
the chance of getting parked,

You may be aware that between 7.30 and 8.30am there are several vehicles that park in our street,
the occupants of which park then either walk or cycle to work, we also seem to have & number of
work vans that park overnight in our street that do not appear 1o be residents, | belleve this is because
we are one of the last streets not have restrictions, therefore our slreet is now becoming a magnet for
people wanting to park for free all day.

Baoth Steph and | are willing to canvas the street, 1o gain opinion on what the residents think and if you
would fike us to take this further. this process | am told can take as long as 16 months to be enforced,
this depends on how popular it is with residents, If most residents agree it can take less time. | would
appreciate if you would fill the attached form and putit through either my or Steph’s door, we can then
gather the consensus of how popular this would be. If the majarity is in favour, we would be happy to
begir tha process of moving forward with the scheme.

| am awars that this does come at a cost to residents, the cost varies depending on the type of vehicle
you have and hew marny vehicles per hausehold, the following information has been gathered from
the city of Yaork council website, if you look under the resident's priority parking scherne, you can find
aut more information. If you don't have access o the intermet and want more information, please ask
at tha attached form and we will be happy to gather this for yau,

If you do not have a vehicle yourself, you can still purchase visitors parking permits from thie council at
the cost of £6.25 for 5 permits, @ parmit lasts until 10am the following day allowing guests fo stay
overnight and only using one permit.

Information from the council website is as follows:

Cost of household parking permits You can have a permil for 3, &, 9 or 12 months. The cost of
your permit depands on how long you want the pearmit for.

There are also 3 different rates available depending on the level of emissions that your vehicle
produces and the size of your vehicle.

Discounied rate

You may be sligible for a discount dependent on your vehicle type:

short car parking discounts are available if your car is shorter than 2.7 metres in length



Page 43

low emigsion parking discounts are available for electric/lLPG powered cars and cars with em s5i0NS
up to 120g/kmz (vehicle tax bands A-C)

You can find vehicle tax information on & new or used car online from the vahicle Certification
Agency.

Standard rate
You'll be charged the standard rate if the emissions are 1219 12 185g/Km2 (vehicle tax bands D to 1)
Premium rate

You'll be charged the premium rate for your housahold permil if the emissions are over 1859/Km2
{vehicle tax bands J to M) or your vehicle is longer than am.

Rates for the first parmit at an address

NMumber of months Discounted rate  Standard rate  Premium rate

| 3 Manths £15.25 £30.50 £41.00

| & Months £30.50 £61,00 £82.00
& Menths £45.75 £91.50 £123.00

12 Months £49.08 £99.95 £136.00

Rates for additional permits at an address

The discounted or premium rates only apply to the initial permit at an address, and don't apply to
additional permits.

Tha rates for additional permits are fixed and determined by the number of additiona permits
requiraed

Mumber of First additional Second additional Third additional
months permit parmit permit

3 Months £57.25 £100.00 £200.00

& Months £114.50 £200.00 £400.00 |
| 9 Months £471.75 £300.00 £600.00 ‘
i 12 Months £182.50 £370.00 £750.00

Thank you for your time and we ook forward lo your feedback be it positive or negative, if you would
like to provide your mobile telephone number we will ba happy o keap you informed, please could
you return the form no later than 12 June, if by then the majority is in favour of tha scheme, we will
spproach the council to take it to the next stage, after we the 1st June we will then post another letter
through to st you know what the response has been,

Yours sincarely

9) @Jﬁ
DA Feedback for resident's priority parking scheme
Please return by 1% June 2018



Page 44

Name ¢
Address

Mobile No:

Any feedback and comments



Page 45
Annex B2

Balmoral Terrace Plan

i—j "I Hl"‘.ll %lﬂ”[ \E‘"’i&t /\> ,‘:;A’::f : ml‘ f;;;‘%;
%:‘i ‘l | = ~ ‘ ]I = ‘LL'X

m i?_? '@&ﬂ Ne=
N 1ED W i [LHJMIM

HHHHI




Page 46

Annex C
Residents Parking Waiting List

Residents parking schemes are dealt with in order of when they are received.

Typically 2 schemes might be introduced per year but this depends on funding and
other workload priorities.

Process Approximate timescale

Stage 1 —initiation

The request (normally by petition) indicating 8 weeks
significant support in an area or street is reported for

either approval to take forward or refuse.

When the potential scheme reaches the top of the list work begins.

The time between stage 1 and 2 varies significantly depending on the length of

the waiting list.

Stage 2 — start of project

A draft scheme and questionnaire will be sentoutto | 6 -8 weeks
all properties within the proposed area. A proposal
will normally be taken forward if there is at least a
50% response rate and the majority of returns are in
favour. Depending on circumstances, there is
potential for individual streets to go forward from an
area if the streets return is very positive whilst the

areas is either low or opposed.

The consultation is then reported along with a 2 weeks
proposed scheme for approval to advertise a Traffic
Regulation Order.

TRO preparation and advertising 4 - 6 weeks

Any objections to the proposed TRO are then 8 weeks

reported for consideration.

If the objections are overturned the scheme will then | 12 - 15 weeks

be implemented.

Once work on a scheme begins it will normally take 9 months to complete.



Page 47

Waiting List

Area

Date
received

Progress

(NOTE: pot all will get through to i mplementa tion)

Rosedale Street Petition

April
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report

Implemented/dropped

Yes
Yes

Danesmead estate Petition

SEE LINK BELOW

April
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Yes
Yes

Sussex Road petition

May
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Yes
Yes

Clifton Dale

June
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Yes

Broadway / Westmorland
Drive

LINK with Danesmead estate
above

Sept.
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Yes
Yes

Pasture Farm Close

Sept.
2017

Reported

Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped

Yes




Page 48

Area Date Finished
received
Main Avenue, First Avenue May. Reported Yes
and Second Avenue 2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Balmoral Terrace June, Reported Yes
2018 Consultation carried out
Consultation report
TRO advertised
Objections report
Implemented/dropped
Area Date Finished
received
South Bank Avenue Petition Summer | Implemented Yes
2016
Butcher Terrace area Petition | Summer | Implemented Yes
2016
Phoenix Boulevard Petition Summer | Implemented Yes
2016
Railway Terrace / 5t Paul's Summer | Implemented Yes
area Pefition 2016
St. Aubyn's Place February | Implemented Yes
2017
5t. John's Place and Chestnut | August | Reported NO
Court 2017 ACTION




Page 49 Agenda Item 6

Decision Session — Executive Member for 16 August 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Corporate Director of Economy and Place
Strensall to Haxby — Danger Reduction Scheme
Summary

1. Update report detailing the investigation into reducing the speed limit and
introducing traffic calming on the rural roads between Haxby and
Strensall, following receipt of a petition. It also includes the results of a
consultation exercise with local ward and parish councillors with regard
the proposed scheme.

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is asked to approve:

Option 2: Introduce a reduced set of measures, as set out in Annex C,
which takes into account the comments from consultees.

Reason: To highlight the presence of vulnerable road users and reduce
the level of perceived danger for local residents and other road users.

Background

3. A petition requesting a reduction of the speed limit and the introduction of
traffic calming measures on rural roads between Haxby and Strensall was
received by City of York Council and was considered by the Executive
Member for Transport and Planning at a decision session on 10
November 2016. The decision taken at the meeting was that the issue be
considered as part of the annual danger reduction measures across the
city. It was therefore added to the danger reduction programme.

Investigation

4. The investigation was carried out and a briefing report (Annex A)
prepared to detail the findings. The report concluded that there is no



Page 50

casualty accident problem or issue with vehicle speeds on the roads in
guestion. However, it considered that the petition demonstrated that there
is a perceived danger to using the road for vulnerable road users.

The briefing note went on to recommend that works should be carried out
to remind drivers of the need to reduce speed particularly at the bends,
and highlight the presence of vulnerable road users, and that the existing
signing and lining needs refreshing. The details of the proposals are
attached as Annex B.

The briefing report was considered by the Assistant Director Transport,
Highways and Environment and it was decided that the scheme should
progress to consultation with local representatives.

Consultation

7.

10.

11.

The recommended proposals were issued to local ward councillors and
the parish and town councils of the nearby villages. Along with the
emergency services. The following comments were received:

Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council

Strensall Parish Council considered the Haxby to Strensall Danger
Reduction Scheme at its meeting on June 12th.

The Parish Council generally agreed with the findings of the briefing
report as far as the recorded observation of speed limits and the accident
record is concerned, and consider there to be no more of an issue on
this road than any comparable rural road.

The Parish Council do not consider the intense signage proposed to be a
good use of resources and consider that it will adversely affect the rural
appearance of the entrance to the village. They have requested that the
signage be reduced to a bare minimum and any funds released be used
to repair the road surface.

Clir P. Doughty (Ward member for Strensall)

Clir Doughty confirmed that he had attended the Strensall Parish
Council meeting on 12" June and broadly agrees with the comments
from the Parish Council.



Page 51

12. He also noted that he approves of the refreshing of the white lining,
cleaning of existing signage and the horses warning sign due to the
stables which are well used.

13. He asked that consideration was given to improvements for sections of
rural routes where patching near the verges in particular has left them at
the point where greater intervention is needed. He noted he was grateful
when a section of Haxby Moor Road (not the whole width of the road)
was reconstructed and believes this same treatment is needed at several
other stretches and bends. Appreciates this would need budgeting but
believes future consideration is needed as sections are becoming
beyond patching.

14. ClIr H. Douglas (Ward member for Strensall) - No response
Haxby Town Council

15. The Town council provided comments relating to the speed of vehicles
entering and exiting the village on Moor Lane and requested the 30mph
limit be relocated further north with coloured tarmac and rumble strips
provided to reduce speeds

16. Wigginton Parish Council - No response

17. ClIr I. Cuthbertson (Ward member for Haxby and Wigginton) - No
response

18. ClIr J. Gates (Ward member for Haxby and Wigginton) - No response

ClIr T. Richardson (Ward member for Haxby and Wigginton)
19. ClIr Richardson is generally happy with the scheme, but asked that the

road markings at the farm in extract 8 are made very clear as this was the
site of a collision some time ago.

Emergency Services

20. North Yorkshire Police — Happy to support the proposals.



Page 52

Officer response

21. Extra signs
The extra supplementary plates for the warning signs were designed to
give drivers additional information with regard the hazard. Officers
recognise that this does increase the amount of sign clutter on a rural
route and after considering all responses suggest that the “max speed”
plates are removed from the scheme as shown in Annex C.

22. Reallocation of funding
The request to reallocate budget from the Danger Reduction scheme to
the maintenance programme is not possible at this time. This scheme
forms part of the safety scheme programme which is significantly over
programmed at present and any budget savings from the reduction or
removal of this scheme from the programme should be used to fund
other safety schemes.

23. Carriageway condition
As well as visiting the site officers reviewed the annual condition for the
highway under investigation. The majority of the carriageway for the
routes shows signs of wear but is not functionally impaired. There are
sections which are in poorer condition, but works need to be prioritised
across the authority area through the maintenance programme which is
developed by the Asset Management team.

24. Moor Lane entry and exit speeds
The investigation was based on a request via petition to reduce the
speed limit on Moor Lane, Crossmoor Lane and Haxby Moor Rd. This
did not involve looking at entry / exit speeds at the villages. Haxby Town
Council were advised to contact our the CYC Road Safety team if they
wished to have the village entry / exit speeds considered under the
speed management partnership.

Options

25. Option 1: Introduce the measures as set out in Annex B.



26.

27.

Page 53

Option 2: Introduce a reduced set of measures taking into account the
comments from consultees, set out in Annex C.

Option 3: Do nothing.

Analysis

28.

29.

30.

The original proposal Option 1 (Annex B) was designed to help remind
drivers of the need to reduce speed at the bends, highlight the presence
of vulnerable road users and reduce the level of perceived danger for
local residents and other road users. This would introduce a significant
number of extra supplementary sign plates to the route which the
consultees who responded considered mostly unnecessary.

To address the concerns of sign clutter Option 2 provides a reduced
scheme. This option still provides supplementary information for the
warning signs which refer to vulnerable road users but removes the “max
speed” plates. The speed of vehicles on these routes is not excessive
and these extra signs would only have an impact at the bends so officers
consider the loss to the scheme overall to be negligible. The responses
to the consultation suggest that the remaining measures including the
lining refresh are well supported.

Option 3 does nothing to address the concerns raised in the original
petition and so is not recommended.

Council Plan

31.

This section explains how the proposals relate to the Council’s 3 key
priorities, as set out in the Council’s Plan 2015-19.

Key Priority - a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the
services they want and works in partnership with local communities.

The Council having received a petition has actively investigated the
problems identified and working with local community representatives
developed a reasonable solution to improve the route for vulnerable
users and reduce speeds without altering the signed speed limit.

Implications

32. The following implications have been considered:



Page 54

. Financial — The scheme costs have been estimated at £15,000
including staff costs. This is affordable from the safety schemes
budget in the 18/19 capital programme.

. Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

« One Planet Council / Equalities - There are no One Planet Council /
equalities implications.

. Legal - There are no legal implications.

« Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder implications.

. Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

. Property - There are no property implications.

Risk Management

33.

34.

35.

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the following
risks associated with the recommendation in this report have been
identified and described in the following points, and set out in the table
below:

Authority reputation — The recommendation does not seek to reduce the
speed limit as requested in the original petition. This risk is in connection
with the public perception of the Council for not complying with the
request made in the petition and is assessed at 10.

Risk Category | Impact |Likelihood | Score

Organisation/ Minor | Probable |10
Reputation

As detailed in the briefing note (Annex A) a reduction of the speed limit
would have a negligible effect on vehicle speeds which would potentially
have a more substantial impact on the reputation of the organisation.
Due to this reasoning the risk associated with maintaining the current
limit and carrying out alternative measures is consider acceptable.



Page 55

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Ben Potter Neil Ferris

Engineer Corporate Director of Economy and Place
Transport Projects

Tel No. 01904 553496 Report Date 19 July 2018

Approved

Wards Affected: Haxby and Wigginton / Strensall

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Decision Session 10 November 2016 — Haxby to Strensall Speed Limit
Petition — Report

Annexes

Annex A - Briefing Note
Annex B - Proposed Scheme — Location Plan and Extracts
Annex C - Amended Scheme — Location Plan and Extracts


http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=738&MId=9479&Ver=4
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=738&MId=9479&Ver=4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

ANNEX A

Strensall — Haxby Speed limit reduction reguest.

Background

A petition requesting a reduction of the speed limit and the introduction of traffic
calming measures on rural roads between Haxby and Strensall was received by City
of York Council and was considered by the Executive Member for Transport and
Planning at a decision session on 10 November 2016. The decision taken at the
meeting was that the issue be considered as part of the annual danger reduction
measures across the city. It was therefore added to the 17/18 danger reduction
program.

Strensall

LOCATION PLAN

Haxby 7 Wigginton ©"2018 Microsoft Corporation © 2018 DigitalGlobe ©CNES (2018) Distribution Airbus DS K

The Site

The roads (Moor Lane, Cross Moor Lane, Haxby Moor Road & Usher Lane,
highlighted on the location plan above) that link Haxby to Strensall are rural with a
few properties (business and residential) having direct access on to them. In addition
to vehicular traffic the route is popular with horse riders, cyclists and walkers,
although there are no footways. The roads are mainly long straights with good
visibility linked by sharp bends where forward visibility is greatly reduced. Warning
signing for the bends along with chevrons and marker posts is in place where
appropriate but the condition is variable. The signs are also accompanied by
“SLOW” road markings which are wearing off and are likely unreadable in wet and
dark conditions when they are most needed. Most of the route also has evidence of


ddttsbp
Text Box
ANNEX A


Page 58

edge of carriageway markings which have either faded completely due to vehicle
overrun or the verge has overgrown the carriageway masking the lines.

Accident Data

Casualty accident data for the three year period between 01/01/2014 and
31/12/2016 was examined for the whole route.

Two slight accidents were recorded. Both were single vehicle accidents one due to
mud on the road and one due to the driver being taken ill at the wheel.

The accident rate for the length of road in question is 424bvm (billion vehicle miles)
below the national average for a rural road in the UK which is 440bvm. This suggests
that the problem on the route is one of perceived danger as it is not reflected in the
accident data.

Speed data

Speed data was collected at four locations along the route during November 2017. A
summary is given below and more details are provided as Annex A. The locations of
each survey are shown on the location plan on page 1.

Location 1 Moor Lane

Direction South | North
Mean Speed | 37.94| 33.87
85th %ile 44 38

Location 2 Cross Moor Lane

Direction West | East
Mean Speed | 43.33| 44.88
85th %ile 52 54

Location 3 Haxby Moor Road West

Direction West | East
Mean Speed | 34.68 | 35.53
85th %ile 40 41

Location 4 Haxby Moor Road East

Direction West | East
Mean Speed 36.47 | 39.21
85th %ile 42 45




Page 59

The data illustrates that the existing limit is working well, with mean and 85"
percentile speeds along the route below the 60mph limit at all four locations.

National guidance for setting local speed limits is included in DfT circular 01/2013
(Setting Local Speed Limits), which advises that most rural roads of this nature
should be set at 60mph. In addition to mean and 85™ percentile speeds
environmental factors are also considering when setting a speed limit for a rural
road. This includes features like bends, junctions or accesses, substantial
development, a strong environmental or landscape reason, or where there are
considerable numbers of vulnerable road users. The section in question does include
some of these factors however, the speeds are already much lower than the posted
limit. If the speed limit were to be lowered to 40mph it is unlikely that residents and
road users would see any visible difference in speeds, which in turn would likely lead
to calls for enforcement on a road which currently has no speeding or accident
problems.

The guidance also provides advice for inappropriate speed, at levels below the legal
limit but above those appropriate for the road at the time (for example, because of
the weather conditions or because vulnerable road users are present), as this can be
a particular problem for rural roads. Many of the comments in the petition allude to
this being the issue rather than a consistent problem with speed. Speed limit
changes are therefore unlikely to fully address the problems local residents have
reported.

Traffic Calming

The petition also requested traffic calming measures are considered for the route.
Traffic calming is a more urban feature and so isn’t usually considered for rural roads
such as these. Rural traffic calming is usually used at the entrance to villages to help
reduce speed through a built up area or in national parks. These usually take the
form of pinch points or rumble strips and only serve to remind drivers of the need to
slow down where the environment changes rather than provide a repeated traffic
calming effect.

The route does have some indicators to drivers that they need to slow down in the
form of warning signs and slow markings. However, these features have been in
place for some time without any maintenance and are now faded, broken or dirty.
This means drivers are likely to miss the important safety messages provided by the
features. Many of the signs are also not accompanied by a supplementary plate
which can help to provide additional messages and clarification as to the meaning of
the sign. Additionally the edge of carriageway markings which helped to visually
narrow the carriageway promoting lower speeds are almost non-existent in some
places. These can be helpful on long straights to discourage inappropriate speed
and are cheap to install and maintain.

Recommendation



Page 60

The data led investigation shows that there is no casualty accident problem or issue
with vehicle speeds on the roads in question. The petition demonstrates that there is
a perceived danger to using the road for vulnerable road users. It is therefore
recommended that works are carried out to remind drivers of the need to reduce
speed at the bends and highlight the presence of vulnerable road users. Additionally
the existing lining needs refreshing. Therefore it is recommended that:

e The existing speed limit remains.

e Signing improvements and maintenance of other street furniture is carried out
along the route - see attached drawings:
TP/170017/RP — Route Plan, TP/170017/01 — 08 — Extract Drawings

e All existing lining is refreshed including edge of carriageway markings to
visually narrow the road.

Estimated cost for these works - £11,000

The area will continue to be monitored through the annual casualty accident cluster
site review.



City of York Council Speed Survey Summary T cirv o - >
YORK Qe Z
Right hand bend sign & couner — Z2
o L
10 - 26 November 2017 — X
ACPO enforcement speed 68 16 days of data >
Speed Limit: 60
Key speed statistics
Direction South North Mean Speed South  North
Mean 37.94| 33.87 Midnight - 7am 3458  34.53
85th Percentile 44 38 7am-9am 38.29  34.98
95th Percentile 49 42 10am-3pm 37.47 33.68
Top Speed 67 64 4pm-6pm 38.01 33.06
Percentage 0.0%| 0.0% 8pm-Midnight 39.64  34.20
above ACPO
enforcement |
speed
Percentage 0.1%| 0.0%
above speed
limit
Mean Speed by Hour Speed Distribution
50.00 12.0%
45.00
_ 40.00 A — 10.0%
8 35.00 -W‘——» e e ’q
T 30.00 - 8.0%
& 25.00 / X
$ 20.00 6.0%
E 15.00 @ SoUth / / \\ @ South
10-80 e North 4.0% North
5.00
OOO O‘OIO'OIOIOIOIO‘OIO'OIOIOIOIOIOIO‘OIOIOIOIOIO'O‘ 20% // \ \
00 e
Miles per Hour

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

T9 abed


http://www.novapdf.com

City of York Council Speed Survey Summary ZQYBROFK S jZ>
Telegraph Pole Crossmoor Lane YK1610880 p councit N 2
10 - 26 November 2017 = Q
ACPO enforcement speed 68 17 days of data > >
Speed Limit: 60

Key speed statistics
Direction West East Mean Speed West East
Mean 43.33| 44.88 Midnight - 7am 4498  35.86
85th Percentile 52 54 7am-9am 4556  45.04
95th Percentile 58 60 10am-3pm 43.11 4414
Top Speed 80 85 4pm-6pm 41.78 45.31
Percentage 0.2%| 1.0% 8pm-Midnight 44.19  47.43
above ACPO
enforcement
speed
Percentage 2.7%| 4.8%
above speed

limit

29 abed

Mean Speed by Hour Speed Distribution
70.00 6.0%
60.00

5 50.00 >0%

£ oo W WP ———eee————

— 40.00 Y 4.0%

2 3000 \_ ,/ Vv // v \\

S 20.00 // \ es
10.00 emEast 2.0% // \\\ East
o0 -——-————— ——— —— — 1.0% A

£888588858388888888888858
£§888888888888888888888858 .
S288388583S2988388582381484 0.0%
Hour Commencing 1 4 7 1013 16 19 22 25 28 31 34 37 40 43 46 49 52 55 58 61 64 67 70

Miles per Hour

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com

City of York Council Speed Survey Summary ZQYBROFK S jZ>
Haxby Moor Road Bend Sign p councit w I'ZI'I
10 - 25 November 2017 S, X
ACPO enforcement speed 68 15 days of data > >
Speed Limit: 60

Key speed statistics
Direction West East Mean Speed West East
Mean 34.68| 35.53 Midnight - 7am 3474  29.76
85th Percentile 40 41 7am-9am 35.62 3531
95th Percentile 43 45 10am-3pm 3491 3556
Top Speed 57 64 4pm-6pm 33.39 35.32
Percentage 0.0%| 0.0% 8pm-Midnight 34.83  36.62
above ACPO
enforcement |
speed
Percentage 0.0%| 0.0%
above speed
limit
Mean Speed by Hour Speed Distribution
45.00 10.0%
. 2(5)'88 7@*——@ 8.0%
ji:) 25:00 ! 7'02/" /.
§ 20.00 6'00/" [/
2 15.00 West >0% 11 Vst
= 10,00 4.0%
oSt 0 II St
5.00 3.0% 1/
000 ——-"+—r-"-"—++r—rrr—rr——————————————— 2.0% //
2888285588888883:88888888¢ 1.0%
secgssssscEsasEEaEsasaas 00% e A
Hour Commencing 1 4 7 101316 19 22 25 28 31 34 37 40 43 46 49 52 55 58 61 64 67 70
Miles per Hour

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

€9 abed



http://www.novapdf.com

City of York Council Speed Survey Summary Z‘*"YBROFK S jZ>
Haxby Moor Road Bend Sign p councit s I'ZI'I
10 - 29 November 2017 S, X
ACPO enforcement speed 68 19 days of data > >
Speed Limit: 60

Key speed statistics
Direction West East Mean Speed West East
Mean 36.47| 39.21 Midnight - 7am 37.02  36.16
85th Percentile 42 45 7am-9am 3759  39.82
95th Percentile 45 49 10am-3pm 36.48  39.71
Top Speed 74 62 4pm-6pm 35.62 38.05
Percentage 0.0%| 0.0% 8pm-Midnight 36.92  40.02
above ACPO
enforcement |
speed
Percentage 0.0%| 0.0%
above speed
limit
Mean Speed by Hour Speed Distribution
42.00 10.0%
41.00
40.00 - 9.0%
_ 3050 W 0% lr\
S 38.00 - %
* 37.00 A 7'00/ | \
83600 47 V¥ N~ /. 6.0% N/ 1\
83500 I -~ 5.0%
S 3100 /et . I / \ \ /st
4.0%
33.00 East 2.0% [/ A\ —
3200 20% l/ AW
e s s s s ssssssssssssssns L0% /4 AN\
SE8E838858233-8838858588888 0.0% e T R —————
Hour Commencing 1 4 7 101316 19 22 25 28 31 34 37 40 43 46 49 52 55 58 61 64 67 70
Miles per Hour

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

9 abed


http://www.novapdf.com

L=

Selected Range af Ageidents petween da
Sele tee

—i

gsingsilanual Sglectibn /

;’S 01f0T#o34.and 3

N =

*._6&_
{ﬁﬁ» = White lé-luuse;r_‘-,
A o X 5. Fm IIr

b == ’
Q il!,.\El\l!’s\‘)

| { ’-‘“ﬁat_e:_zzlpll_zouh Rt DT
_—~High Grange | :

Police_ref: 12140011742

Haxby\ Lodge

£ /
& o

Towfhn rne:’ﬁpmq'sn

LT

FA ;“’?‘L/ﬂ-\
20Gr«aarv,.rstnniem Fm j\/f

A .--“'--.___. ; : L. s
[T e

;- Earswick Moof
e U

ff#—' N AP
i

)r2U]

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

: =
N

, rh? _['—%{",’T P‘ﬂm-‘x

ACCIDENTS BETWEEN DATES

ENTER START DATE
AND

ENTER END DATE

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office + Crown
Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

City of York Council

Licence No: 1000 20818 April 2005

=~ - m “:'\'\ L - .
Golden Hill Fm 2ot e X Strensi
{Lordsmun' Fapp

A 2
[angyd
.
_,j"""""-
il .. ___—":":—-"_'""_ \-.-"“r‘" . Y g

ffg'Sq,e;lsaTh

g’, ' b -
' 4 4
b\ Tok Dakbutts > N y :}fwl
/ - - il

‘Em"*"' ¢ Camp @‘f’ "

F O - ff
v~ o g
: 7
08N

o) &@»-; "

Her Majesty's Office (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

DRAWING TITLE

&$ CITY OF

COUNCIL

Haxby to Strensall DR scheme

1:17780

30/01/2018

SCALE

G9 obed


http://www.novapdf.com

This page is intentionally left blank



Haxby Moor

Drain

)
=30
)
Haxby Moor
Firs
Fir Croft Far O
-]

215\%9 'Eﬁ?ﬂ:s'fﬁ« s)

O

g

W
3

m

é‘}’#
N

Hoxby Mopr

<

Extréct Plan 2

Q

Lund Field

Extract Plan 1

L und Flel

HAXBY

Extract Plan 3

AWV

\ 20
&

Extract Plan 4

I
y e Farm

Extract Plan 5

S
b [

[
—

=i

HoxkMoor

USHER LANE

(~Pond
)

Extract Plan 8

Whiteland Field

% .
b/
L&
&
Extract Plan 7
leQ
(N °
V)
)

w, B> B

A

&

(l

\

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

owthorpe Bridge

Moat

174n

path W

A%
West
i
=
=y
0
Towthorpe

4
A RSPeLf qellinson Ve ‘- (7
(=) [3)
o Q.
) o
Q:
Extract Plan 6
i)
% 0@ L)
2y ln SR
R 2NE
SN R334
g P AN
NS '
fis TEo
: 7
aE ; x
[\ S
gy &l 3
Tee] ] 1]n1y
S0 st = g
= . O
®
(@))
\ ~
0%, — 2,
4
Qe
TNEs=/9 D :
Queen b
- A0
— >
O =
Bt
=M
i o X/
a Q) 3 m
= ST - n
L1
Strensall — |
Strensall Partk m
-

©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

» -

www.york.gov.uk

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Highways - Transport Projects and Delivery Team
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

INITIAL REV

AMENDMENT

DATE

DRAWN BY

B Potter

CHECKED BY

DATE | 02/02/2018

A2

Danger Reduction 17/18
Haxby to Strensall
Location plan

SCALE

NTS

TP/170017/RP



AutoCAD SHX Text
Anvil

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
609

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
OAKEN GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
CROSSMOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Cobb's Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
HARLOW COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
WESTPIT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Holme Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
WAINCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
WEST END

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Church Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Lavender House

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
RIPLEY GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
515

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
HAXBY MOOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
MOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Farriers

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Poppyfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Acorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
PORTISHAM PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Jubilee Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
PELHAM PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
The Poplars

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Wheatlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
OAKHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
22 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
ASH WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Strensall New Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
LTwrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Saddlers

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Beech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
HAXBY MOOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
19.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
LEYFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
YORK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
LONGCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
49c

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
605

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
17.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
17.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
HIGHLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
18.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Willow Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Moor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Parkstone Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
West Pits

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
18.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
14 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
Gas Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Haxby Grange Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Little Owl

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
The Swallows

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
18.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
MOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
RIVERSIDE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
49d

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Level Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
MOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
RADLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
WHEATCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Willow Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Manor Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SIMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
NEWTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
17.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Camp View

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
LANGTON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
CHIPSTEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
HALLARD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
River Foss

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
TOWTHORPE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
SHELLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
The Old Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Little Firs

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
KIRKLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Rest

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
Ingham Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Bramble Hedge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Beith Acre

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Queen Elizabeth Barracks

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
ADLINGTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Tennis

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
16.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
CREASER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
CORNCROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Lund Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
49b

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Low

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Yew Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
The Old Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Towthorpe Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Crossmoor Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
YORK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
18.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
(Old Enclosures)

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
WINDSOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Sefton Ho

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
DURLSTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
18.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Fairbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
Foss Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
River Foss

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
KNAPTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
MP 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
ST MARY'S CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
USHER LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Horseshoe

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
611

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
THE CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
MIDDLECROFT GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
YORK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
MOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Caldie

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
Chaloner Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
Oakbutts Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Golden Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
9 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
WESTPIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Western Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
The Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
TOWTHORPE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
BARLEY RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Cemetery

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
HOLME LEA

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
RYECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
WOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
Towthorpe

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
49a

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
TOWTHORPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
517

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
Haxby

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
GLEBE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
CHURCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
STRENSALL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
TYNEHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
Lund Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
MP 4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
MOORLAND GARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Ash Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
BIRCH TREE CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
FIRBANK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
MELCOMBE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
LANE (Track)

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
Westover

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
Wigginton Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
OSMINGTON GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Moat

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
453

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
18 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Spion Kop

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
FARRIERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
Lund

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
Goland

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Whincover

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
PORTISHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
CHESHIRE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
Mayfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
18.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
USHER LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
KIRKLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
FOSSLAND VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
Forest Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
CROOKLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
CHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
CHALDON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
MP 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
SUSSEX WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
Galtres

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
Grange House

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
ST WILFRID'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
89a

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
Thornville

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
WOODLEIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
Whiteland Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
WILKINSON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Loch Earn

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
BALFOUR WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
Strensall Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
Corner Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
LYNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
LADYSMITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
Drylands Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Pasture Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
17.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
TOBY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
LOW CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
CROOKLAND LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
Strensall Camp

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Filling Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
EES

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
17.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
Strensall Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Housemartins

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
CYPRUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
Strensall Camp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
CROSSMOOR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
River Foss

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
Grange Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
Greenlees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
49e

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
Goland

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
ALEXANDRA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
16.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
TOWTHORPE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
Foot Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
15.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
WEST END CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
SHERBOURNE GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
Haxby Moor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
Fir Croft Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
Level Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
ST WILFRID'S CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
The Robert Wilkinson VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
THE OLD HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
Helmsdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
19.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
LTwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
BEECH PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
599

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
29

ddttsbp_1
Text Box
ANNEX B - Location Plan


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

The 0Old Rectory

Existing speed limit
boundary

Relocate warning sign
and add supplementary
plate.

20

No footway
for 244 miles

Q

ANNEX B

Extracts 1-8

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

Danger Reduction 17/18

FYoRK

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk

SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
Extract 1 DATE 05/02/18
REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN]
DRAWN | B Potter
TP/170017/01
CHECK



ddttsbp_2
Text Box
ANNEX B
Extracts 1-8


Straighten fingerpost pole and
clean all direction signs.

Replace 2 number chevron

B

boards

" /

\ /

i

\

\
Replace 7no. verge | "\ \
marker posts o \

warning sign

Clean existing bend

Max
speed

30

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

fond

For
400 yards

| Clean existing sign

| Add supplementary plate

p—

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall

Tree

Refresh all white
lining including
"SLOW" markings

Replace cats eyes through
junction 12No.

Ne

- Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

o xky Moor

Firs

Fir Croft Farm

Clean existing bend
warning sign

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

| Clean existing sign |

For
400 yards

| Add supplementary plate|

|| ©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

<2

Highways - Transport Projects and Delivery Team
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

www.york.gov.uk

INITIAL

REV

AMENDMENT

DATE

DRAWN BY

Ben Potter

CHECKED BY

DATE

05/02/18 A2

Danger Reduction 17/18
Haxby - Strensall
Extract 2

SCALE NTS

TP/170017/02

0/ abed



Page 71

b

1 Replace

chevron boards

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

we 30

Refresh "SLOW" markings r\

Refresh all white
lining at junction

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

speed

3

0

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

-

——

Max
speed

Add advisory speed

30

supplementary plate

&
)

X
.

/K Add new "SLOW" marking

w< <

~Replace chevron board

Pasture Farm

Refresh all white
| lining at junction

1
1l

R

—
L]

—

Jrot Farm

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

e iy oF Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
YO Haxby- Strensall
Extract 03 DATE 05/02/18
COUNCIL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE [DRAWN| DRAWN | Ben Potter
Transport Projects TP/1 7001 7/03
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS CHECK
www.york.gov.uk




Page 72

Max 3 O Add advisory speed
supplementary plate
speed

Road liable
to flooding

| Refresh "SLOW" markings

Mayfields

o

PacL

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg
e ciry oF Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
YORK Extract 4 DATE | 05/02718
COUNGCIL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN;
T rt Project: DRAWN [ Ben Potter
ranspol rojects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS TP/1 7001 7/04 CHECK
www.york.gov.uk




Page 73

A

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

A\

speed 3 O

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

Refresh "SLOW" markings

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

Danger Reduction 17/18

SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
Extract 5 DATE 05/02/2018
REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN]
DRAWN Ben Potter
TP/170017/05
CHECK




/A

Max
speed

30

Refresh "SLOW" markings

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

A\

Road liable
to flooding

Existing speed limit
boundary

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg
o]

S

Dat
Q.‘
X\
AN
N
0
cd
0.
Q.
N

No footway |[|Add supplementary
for 24 miles [[P°*

Q \/\/

N

N
@Q

DATE  05/02/18

Extract 6

I ©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818 I
REV] AMENDMENT .
cirv or [TAL DA Danger Reduction 17/18
YORK DRAWN BY | Ben Potter H b St "

COUNCIL CHECKED BY axpby - strensa
Transport Projects SCALE NTS A4
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

TP/170017/06

) abed




Page 75

Relocate warning sign to LC17.
Add supplementary plate.

No footway

for 2 miles

Drain

www.york.gov.uk

‘ CITY OF
HYORK Extract 7
COUNCIL AMENDMENTS

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

REV]

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg
Danger Reduction NTS
Haxby - Strensall
05/02/2018
Ben Potter
TP/170017/07




Page 76

FB

w30

Add advisory speed

Refresh "SLOW"
markings

supplementary plate O /sy

Refresh "SLOW"
markings

<]

w30

Add advisory speed
supplementary plate

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall base plan.dwg

‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
Extract 8 DATE 05/02/18
REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN| DRAWN Ben Potter
TP/170017/08
CHECK




Haxby Moor

Hoxby Mopr

8

<

@
&
%
<
. ~
— o
s
\ /
2 Al
&RP'E%SFBS'& s> 6 4
o -3
- AR
‘\
\ 0

Extréct Plan 2

Lund Field

Extract Plan 1

L und Flel

HAXBY

/

L

i

Cob's

(l

Extract Plan 4 X S bt e 9
S . 2
y 8 XL e Q.
.. * Extract Plan 6
Extract Plan 3 ¥
\ s
Extract Plan 5
: STRENSALL
[’Oﬁ’ﬁ < % : \'5“‘ ]
Jf = . X o BRI B\
A -
e & ) & T
.l %
Ll . T
Z ‘ 2 3
A i
2 e ; = A \
Lu a
§ HaxkMoor . m = B,Lﬂ T A
: 2 : .
T . X G
- ? 2 | 2
0%, - Z
¥ e ; <
& N 2
U > >
) — 0 3 Z}
& w . ::5 g}; :EE:%%%
L
. ) Q3 Ul
> 2 X
Extract Plan 8 Q. O i
¢ e Whiteland Field &g«’  thoroe Bridae O :P
. Z o g |T| — ,;
g @ 29
/e - 1 QO Q) |
’ z 7 19 =
=) T » g
o D 2 o - — |
N 0 =
Extract Plan 7
/ /;7‘;4% : - Towthorpe . oo
w S o %
e

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

g COUNCIL
Highways - Transport Projects and Delivery Team

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

INITIAL

REV

AMENDMENT

DATE

Danger Reduction 17/18

DRAWN BY | B Potter

CHECKED BY

DATE

02/0212018| A2

Haxby to Strensall
Location plan

SCALE NTS

TP/170017/RP



ddttsbp_3
Text Box
ANNEX C
Amended Location Plan and Extracts 1-8


Page 78

The 0Old Rectory

boundary

Existing speed limit

Relocate warning sign
and add supplementary

plate.
\,75

P
L)

—

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

\ 4V

No footway
for 244 miles

o

ﬂ‘

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Transport Projects

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
Extract 1 DATE 05/02/18
REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN]
DRAWN B Potter
TP/170017/01
CHECK




Replace 2 number chevron

B

Straighten fingerpost pole and boards
clean all direction signs.
Tree
—
-
~
~
- .
e Refresh all white
/ lining including
./ "SLOW" markings
/

Replace 7no. verge |
marker posts

Clean existing bend
warning sign

| Clean existing sign

fond

Replace cats eyes through
junction 12No.

Z
2

\

40(;:;:"'8 | Add supplementary plate

pm—

2
S
=
Z
m

2

d
Q)

Clean existing bend
warning sign

| Clean existing sign |

For

| Add supplementary plate|

400 yards

o xky Moor

Firs

Fir Croft Farm

|| ©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

-] CITY OF INITIAL REV AMENDMENT DATE
DRAWN BY |Ben Potter A Max speed supplementary signs Jun’
removed 18
COUNCIL CHECKED BY
Highways - Transport Projects and Delivery Team
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS DATE 05/02/18 A2
www.york.gov.uk

Danger Reduction 17/18

Haxby - Strensall SCALE

NTS

Extract 2 rev A
TP/170017/02-A

6/ obed



Page 80

b

1 Replace chevron boards

Existing bend
warning sign

Refresh "SLOW" markings r\

Existing bend
warning sign

>

LN

X

L
/K Add new "SLOW" marking

Refresh all white
lining at junction

Existing bend
warning sign

Existing bend
warning sign

Replace chevron board

Pasture Farm

Refresh all white
lining at junction

—

—

Jrot Farm

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

CITY OF

YO

COUNCIL

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS
www.york.gov.uk

Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS

Haxby- Strensall

Extract 03 rev A DATE 05/02/18

REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN]

A |Max speed supplementary Jun’ [BP DRAWN | Ben Potter
signa remove ® | |TP/170017/03-A [




Page 81

Existing
warning signs

| Refresh "SLOW" markings

Mayfields

o

PacL

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg
e iy oF Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
YORK Extract 4 rev A DATE | 05/0218
COUNCIL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE [DRAWN] DRAWN | Ben Potter
Transport Projects gg::e:ﬁif;fplementary ;jgn BP TP/1 7001 7/04 A
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS - CHECK
www.york.gov.uk




Page 82

Existing bend
warning signs

=
N Refresh "SLOW" markings
oy

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

e ciry oF Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
K Extract 5 rev A DATE | 05/02/2018
COUNCIL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE |DRAWN| DRAWN Ben Potter
. Max speed supplementary Jun' | Bp

Transport Projects A M

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS signs removed 18 TP/1 7001 7/05'A CHECK
www.york.gov.uk




Refresh "SLOW" markings

boundary

Existing speed limit

Existing
warning signs

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

O\
X\
AN
N
D
oo
R
Q.
)

| Add supplementary

No footway Clate

for 2l miles
N

I ©CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818 I

BE cirvoor INTAL_{REV AVENDVENT 22T Danger Reduction 17/18
YORK DRAWNBY | BenPotter | A Max speed supplementary |Jun’
OR| CHEGKED BY signs removed 18 | Haxby - Strensall

Extract 6 rev A

Transport Projects SCALE NTS A4
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

www.york.gov.uk DATE  05/02/18

TP/170017/06-A

€g abed



Page 84

Relocate warning sign to LC17.
Add supplementary plate.

No footway

for 2 miles

Drain

www.york.gov.uk

‘ CITY OF
HYORK Extract 7
COUNCIL AMENDMENTS

Transport Projects
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

REV]

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg
Danger Reduction NTS
Haxby - Strensall
05/02/2018
Ben Potter




Page 85

Refresh "SLOW"
markings

<]

l Refresh "SLOW"
markings

L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Danger Reduction\DR 1718\Haxby to Strensall - Cross Moor Lane & Haxby Moor Lane\DR1718 Haxby Strensall amended scheme.dwg

gy iy oF Danger Reduction 17/18 SCALE NTS
Haxby - Strensall
¥ ORK Extract 8 rev A DATE |  05/02118
COUNCIL REV] AMENDMENTS DATE [DRAWN| DRAWN | Ben Potter

. Max speed supplementary Jun’| BP

Transport Projects A (M

Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS signs removed 18 TP/1 7001 7/08'A CHECK

www.york.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



_ Page 87 Agenda Item 7

' 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Decision Session: Executive Member for 16 August 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Corporate Director of Economy and Place

Consideration of results from the consultation in Sussex Road and
Immediate area following a petition received requesting Residents’
Priority Parking

1. Summary

To report the consultation results undertaken in May for Sussex Road,
Sussex Close and the affected properties which have frontages/access
onto the proposed area, then determine what action is deemed
appropriate (plan of consultation area included as Annex A).

2. Recommendation

It is recommended that approval be given to take no further action
towards the implementation of Residents Priority parking at this location
and remove the consulted area from the Residents Parking waiting list.

Reason: The required response rate has not been met along with the
close percentage vote received for and against the scheme.

3. Background

We received a petition with 34 signatures representing 18 properties on
Sussex Road. The petition was reported to the Executive Member for
Transport and Planning on the 13" July 2017. The Executive Member
gave approval to consult with residents when the area reached the top of
the waiting list and to widen the consultation area depending on
circumstances at the time.

The adjoining street (Sussex Close) and properties having a frontage or
entrance onto the proposed area were included within the consultation
area. Also included were the properties and carriageway frontage of 85-
91 Crossways. A plan of the consultation area is included as Annex A.



Page 88
We hand delivered consultation documentation to all properties on the
18" May 2018 requesting residents return their preferences on the
questionnaire sheet in the Freepost envelope provided by Friday 15"
June 2018. Details were also sent to ward councillors.

The consultation documentation is included within this report as :
Annex B: Covering Letter
Annex C: Consultation documentation and questionnaire

Consultation Results (for full details see Annex D)

In total 48 properties were consulted and asked to return their
guestionnaires. The returns did not equate to the required 50%
response rate and the votes for or against the introduction of Residents
Priority Parking were not substantially in favour.

Traditionally, we require a 50% return of questionnaires and the majority
of those returned to be in favour. As the original petition was received
from residents of Sussex Road only, the consultation results could be
considered independently however even when the 50% response was
received (on Sussex Close) the vote is too close to recommend
introducing a scheme as this would not be beneficial to the residents in
such a small area, equating to most vehicles then being parked on
Sussex Road:

Sussex Road: 46% return | 66% in favour, 33% against

Sussex Close: 64% return | 55% in favour, 45% against

Crossways (83-91): 20% return | 100% against

Properties having an access:
33% return | 100% against

Preferred Times of Operation (for full details see Annex D)

For those residents who gave an opinion, just over half indicated a
preference for a part time scheme operating Monday — Friday 9am to
5pm. An alternative was given as 24hours 7 days a week.

One alternative time of operation was suggested for:

Monday — Friday 8.30 to 9.30am and 3.00-4.00pm, however this would
not prevent parking for school drop off and collection.

Resident Comments (précis, full details Annex E)

The most common views across all residents, who were either for or
against residents parking, suggested the problems where being caused



Page 89
by University students and staff, as such the University should be
providing adequate parking for their needs. Concerns have been raised
relating to school parking at drop off and collection times, however
introducing a residents parking scheme would not prevent access or stop
vehicles parking for the dropping off and collection of passengers,
generally a ten minute grace period is given to allow this activity to take
place in restricted areas, this includes ResPark zones and double yellow
lines, so long as no obstruction is being caused.

Options with Analysis
Option 1 (Recommended Option)

a) No further action to be taken.

This is the recommended option because:

We have not received the 50% return rate from the area to recommend
introducing a Residents Priority Parking Scheme. As a whole we
received a 48% return with 56.5% of those in favour and 43.5% against.
We would not recommend taking forward a scheme with only 13
properties in favour out of a total of 48. The original petition was received
from Sussex Road which only has a 46% response rate.

Even though the required percentage of returns where received for
Sussex Close the votes show that 5 residents are in favour and 4 are
against the scheme, it would not be advised to implement a scheme for
such a small cul de sac based on these close results. Complaints were
received regarding vehicles causing problems at school drop off and
collection times; however introducing a Residents Priority parking
scheme would not stop this practise from happening, as a ten minute
period would be given for non permit holders to aid the collection and
drop off of passengers.

Option 2:

a) Advertise an amendment to the Traffic Regulation Order to
introduce a Residents Priority Parking scheme to include the whole
consultation area.

This is not the recommended option because:

We have not received the required 50% return rate. Considering the
results over the whole consultation area we received a 47.9% return with
43.5% of these against the proposal. The original petition was received
just from Sussex Road residents, which also did not receive the required



10.

11.

12.

Page 90
return rate.

This option would not reflect the majority of resident’s opinions for the
area.

Option 3:

b) Advertise an amendment to the Traffic Regulation Order to
introduce a Residents Priority Parking scheme to include Sussex
Close only.

This is not the recommended option because:

This option considers the results from Sussex Close in isolation. The
views of residents are marginal with 5 in favour and 4 against from a total
of 14 properties. Concerns have been raised from Sussex Close about
multiple occupancy properties causing problems in the close, however
these properties would still be permitted to purchase permits for the
scheme.

Consultation

The consultation documentation is reproduced within this report as
Annex A, B and C. The results of the consultation are given in Annex D.
Comments received during the process are précised with officer
response as Annex E.

Letters will be sent to all residents updating them on the outcome of this
meeting and what the result means to them.

Council Plan

The recommended proposal contributes to the Council Plan as:

e A council that listens to residents and follows procedures/guidelines
which are in place.

Implications

This report has the following implications:

Financial — If the recommended option is not agreed then the following
would apply: Residents parking schemes are self financing once in
operation. The £5k allocated within the core transport budget will be
used to progress the proposed residents parking schemes.



Page 91
Human Resources — If a scheme was implemented, enforcement would
fall to the Civil Enforcement Officers necessitating an extra area onto
their work load. We understand Parking Services are increasing
enforcement resources because of additional restrictions implemented
recently.

Equalities — None identified within the consultation process

Legal — If the recommended option is not agreed then any proposals
implemented would require amendments to the York Parking, Stopping
and Waiting Traffic Regulation Order 2014

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 & the Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(procedure) (England & Wales) Regulations 1996 apply

Crime and Disorder — None

Information Technology — None

Land — None

Other — None

Risk Management - There is an acceptable level of risk associated with
the recommended option.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Annemarie Howarth James Gilchrist
Traffic Project Officer Assistant Director for Transport, Highways
Transport and Environment
Tel: (01904) 551337
Report Date: 19.07.18
Approved

Wards Affected: Hull Road

For further information please contact the author of the report.



Page 92
Background Papers:

None

Annexes:

Annex A: Plan of the area consulted

Annex B: Covering letter (consultation)

Annex C: Consultation Information and questionnaire
Annex D: Consultation Results

Annex E: Précis of comments received from Residents



SSSSS

oF
YORK Sussex Road proposed boundary plan

CCCCCCC

rrrrrrrrrrrrr
Licence No. 2003




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

ANNEX B
> .
<=1  ciTY oF Directorate of Place & Economy
I o R K West Offices, Station Rise
R COUNCIL York
YO1l 6GA

Tel: 01904 551550

To the Residents: Email:highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

Sussex Road
Sussex Close Date 18" May 2018
1 Eastfield Crescent
1&2 Field Lane
83-91 Crossways

Dear Resident
Request for a Residents’ Priority Parking Scheme (Respark)

We are writing to you in response to receiving a petition from residents of
Sussex Road asking us to introduce a Respark scheme.

We are proposing a scheme that may not be like others you have experienced
around the city. It does not involve extensive signing and lining works and will
allow you to park anywhere on street not covered by a waiting restriction (yellow
lines), as long as, by so doing, no obstruction of the carriageway or access has
occurred. This is with the exception of one signed/marked bay outside 87-91
Crossways.

Generally we require a 50% response rate from the consultation. From which we
then require a majority to be in favour to allow us to take this forward and initiate
the legal consultation process (when formal objections). Hence, it would be
appreciated if you would take the time to complete the attached questionnaire
and return it in the pre-paid envelope provided before Friday 15" June 2018

Consultation documents
The following information and documents are enclosed:

1. A plan of the consultation area/proposal
2. How a Resident Parking Scheme Works
3. The cost of permits from April 1* 2018
4. Questionnaire (please return)

5. A freepost envelope

Corporate Director: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk



Page 96 ANNEX B

We can only accept one completed sheet from each household. Please
complete and return to us in the Freepost envelope provided by 15" June
2018

If you prefer you can email your response to highway.regulation@york.gov.uk
Please give the information we have asked for on the questionnaire, including
your name and address. Because your preferences will determine whether we
take this forward and initiate the legal process to amend the Traffic Regulation
Order, it is important you return your questionnaire.

You can add and return any comments you wish to make. For example, we
would like to know if any of the following circumstances apply to you:

¢ You have special needs/circumstances that you believe would be
disadvantaged by the introduction of a Respark scheme

e If you rent your property, please write the contact details of the owner (if
known) or managing agent on your return. You should still let us know
your preferences. We will contact the owner separately.

The results of the consultation will be reported to the Executive Member for
Transport and Planning at a Public Decision Session. The Executive Member will
decide whether or not to proceed to the legal consultation part of the process,
which streets will be included and any other changes that may result from this
initial consultation. We will contact you with the date of this meeting to give you
the opportunity to attend. You can arrange to speak at this meeting if you want.

Please contact one of the below officers if you wish to discuss this further or
require any clarification.

Yours faithfully

Annemarie Howarth - ext: 1337
Sue Gill - ext: 1497
Traffic Project Officers

Corporate Director: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk



Page 97 ANNEX C

o
Q‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

b o

Va,

A Residents’ Priority Parking Scheme

In January 2012, the Department for Transport amended Road Traffic
Regulations. The amended regulations permit us to reserve a road for
permit holders during an indicated period (or 24 hours) where parking bays
are not marked. These are suitable for cul-de-sacs or enclosed areas where
the witnessed problems associated with inconsiderate parking are due to the
level of non-resident parking.

Because of the changes, we can now offer residents a Residents’ Priority
Parking Scheme (Respark) where the resident has more control. You can
park anywhere on street as long as you are not parked on any yellow lines,
across a dropped kerb placed for the purpose of vehicle or pedestrian
access/crossing or cause an obstruction.

Signs are mounted at the beginning of the restricted area

to inform drivers that parking is reserved for permit ﬁ
holders. The scheme can operate full time, or on a

part-time basis depending on resident preference. The Permit
timing on the shown sign is an example: — please hu[dgrsﬂ

indicate your preferred times of operation on the parking only
questionnaire sheet enclosed. Outside any specified | past this point
times the street would be available for any vehicle to Mon - Fri
park. A Mon-Fri, 9am to 5pm scheme gives residents | 9am-35pm
and their visitors more flexibility on an evening and
weekend. A full time scheme is more beneficial if non-resident parking
remains at significant levels during evenings and weekends.

Our Respark schemes cannot guarantee a space will be available. A
scheme is introduced to give residents priority over available space within
the boundary of the scheme. In areas of high density housing, pressure for
space can still occur.

There would be no parking allowed for any non-permit holders whilst the
scheme is in operation. Any visitors to your property would require a visitor

1




Page 98 ANNEX C

permit, even for a short duration (except for those activities that are listed
below).

Exemptions within the Traffic Regulation Order

A Resident Parking scheme is a parking restriction; it does not prevent
access. Non residents can wait on street in order to undertake one of the
following activities.

1. Loading and unloading, including passengers. For example, you
would still be able to get goods delivered, move house, or a friend
arrive to collect you or drop you off without the need to display a permit.
Our Civil Enforcement Team wait for approximately 5 to 10 minutes to
ensure no loading activity is occurring before issuing a penalty charge
notice to a vehicle which does not display a valid permit. Please note
parents and carers would still be allowed to enter the resident parking
area to drop off and pick up for nearby Schools.

Vehicles displaying a valid disabled permit (blue badge).

Vehicles used for medical requirements, or for weddings and funerals.
Vehicles which belong to emergency services, statutory bodies or
vehicles being used for highway works.

BN

If you are having work done on the house, your builder or other tradesman
can use a visitor permit or purchase a “builders permit” from parking
services.

Enforcement

If a vehicle parks without a permit, the driver becomes liable for a Penalty
Charge, issued by our Civil Enforcement Team.



Page 99

RESIDENT’S PRIORITY PARKING AREA

g

»

i

CITY

YOR

COUNCIL

ANNEX C

O F

Annual charges for Household and Visitor Permits from APRIL 2018

HOUSEHOLD PERMIT Annual Quarterly
Charge Charge

CARS IN DVLA VEHICLE BAND D — | AND VEHICLES

REGISTERED PRE 2001 £99.95 £30.50

CARS 2.7Mtrs or LESS IN LENGTH

LOW EMISSION VEHICLES £49.98 £15.25

DVLABAND Ato C

CARS IN DVLA VEHICLE BAND J - M £136 ca1

AND VEHICLES MORE THAN 5M IN LENGTH

SECOND PERMIT £182.50 £57.25

THIRD PERMIT £370 £100

FOURTH PERMIT £750 £200

Household Authorisation Cards entitle the holder to obtain Visitors Permits. The cards
are issued automatically with a Household Permit but a householder is entitled to a Card

without exercising an entitlement to a Household Permit.

Household Authorisation Card when the Card is issued at the Nil

same time as a Household Permit
Discount Authorisation Card See eligibility below* Nil
Household Authorisation Card In all other circumstances £3.10
without permit

*Discount Authorisation cards are free of charge and visitor permits reduced to £1.50 a

book if you are:
over 60 years old
a blue disabled badge holder

are registered as blind

in receipt of income support

in receipt of long-term incapacity benefit
in receipt of Job Seeker’s Allowance

receive the higher rate of the mobility component of the disability living allowance




Page 100 ANNEX C

¢ in receipt of Universal Credit (in some circumstances)

Discounts are available if you are claiming a level of Universal Credit that meets any of
the following criteria:

« if you are not working, you (and your partners) total income is no more than your
maximum Universal Credit award entitlement

« your award includes a child amount and, if you (or your partner) work, your monthly
earnings are no more than £935

« you (or your partner) have limited capability for work and, if you (or your partner)
work, your monthly earnings are no more than £935

« the award does not include a child amount, you (or your partner) do not have a
limited capability for work and, if you (or your partner) work, your monthly earnings
are no more than £435

You can provide a copy of your journal confirming the level of your entitlement to the
Universal Credit award or a copy of your entitlement letter.

Visitor Permits

A Visitor Permit entitles the holder to park a vehicle for the day of issue and up to 10am on
the next day. Visitor Permits are available upon application to the Parking Services
Office. The date of use is displayed on each individual Permit by your visitor before it is
placed in the vehicle.

when the purchase is supported by a (£f§r255)
- . Household Authorisation Card
Visitor Permit
when the purchase is supported by a Discount £1.50
Authorisation Card (for 5)

The Permits are supplied in books, each book containing 5 Permits. The maximum
annual entitlement is 200 Permits per household.

Property Permits (commonly known as Builder Permits)

A tradesman doing building or renovation work can obtain a permit to park on a daily basis
or for three months.

Builders/Property Daily charge £3.20

Permit

Permit for 3 months £120




Page 101 ANNEX C

L 8
Q‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Questionnaire Sheet

Sussex Road proposed Residents’ Priority
Parking Scheme

Please indicate your preferences by ticking the appropriate box:

YES NO

Would you support a proposal to introduce a Resident
Parking Scheme on your street?

Please indicate your preferred time of operation, even if you are against the
scheme:

9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday

24 hours, 7 days a week

Other: please state:

Title: (Mr. Mrs. MissS MS)  --------=-mnmmmmmmmmmeeeo- Initial: ------------
SUrNAME. e

AdAress: e

Postcode @ e

Please return in the freepost envelope provided by Friday 15" June.
We will only accept one completed sheet from each household and
your preferences are kept confidential. If you prefer you can email
your preferences and comments to highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

Please write any further Comments you wish to make overleaf

(or use a separate sheet)


mailto:highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Sussex Road area: consultation results

Street Name & Number Yes No Mon - Fri 9-5 | 24 hours Other
Sussex Road (26) 8 4 8 3
Sussex Close (14) 5 4 5 2
Crossways (5) 1 1
Properties with access (3) 1 1
Total 48 13 10 14 5 1

Currently 47.9% return

56.5% in favour

ANNEX D

46.1% return 66% in favour
64.2% return 55.5% in favour
20% return 0% in favour
33.3% return 0% in favour

€T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

ANNEX E

Against the proposal

Whilst we do get problems with school
parking this is only for 1 hour twice a day,
this is not a problem.

Noted

Stop university parking and problem
solved. Residents expect and accept
school drop off/pick up. Problem has only
recently occurred due to university
extension and staff having to pay to park
in the car park.

Noted

The scheme would not help the situation
and we are not willing to pay for a service
that is not beneficial.

Noted

Why should full time residents pay to
park? Multi occupancy houses and
school drop off/pick up cause the
problems. Proposal is penalising
permanent residents.

Multi occupancy residences within the
zone boundary are permitted to purchase
permits to park. The scheme would not
prevent school parking for drop off and
collection of passengers.

Inconsiderate parking occurs at school
drop off and pick up, no problems out of
term and weekends. Restrictions will be
ignored by school parents as they are
now. The scheme will not stop the people
who are causing the problems, would
only punish residents by making them

pay.

The scheme would not prevent school
parking for drop off and collection of
passengers.

In favour

Problems caused by students and
university staff. Some student vehicles
are left for weeks.

Noted

Large numbers of University students
leave vehicles frequently inconsiderately
blocking drives. School drop off and pick
up adds to the problems.

The scheme would not prevent school
parking for drop off and collection of
passengers.

As residents for 54 yrs we believe it is
vital for ResPark to be introduced.
Inconsiderate parking at the entrance to
Sussex Close causes problems.
University should be providing adequate
parking. Also problem with parents
parking for school drop off/pickup.

The scheme would not prevent school
parking for drop off and collection of
passengers.

We could look at including Sussex Close
junction within the next review of waiting
restrictions.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107 Agenda Item 8

YORK

=N CITY OF
& COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 16 August 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Corporate Director of Economy and Place

Submission of Definitive Map Modification Order “The Council of the
City of York Public Footpath, Knapton No.4 (Grange Lane to Rufforth
Airfield)”to the Secretary of State for Determining also requests that the
Secretary of State change the Order Route from Footpath to Restricted
Byway.

Summary

1. Advising the Executive Member that a number of objections have been
received to the above Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) on the
grounds that Grange Lane was a public road and should properly be
recorded on the definitive map as a restricted byway rather than a
footpath. When the order is submitted to the secretary of state for
determining, the Executive Member can ask that the order be modified to
restricted byway.

Recommendation
2. The Executive Member is asked to:

1) Request that the secretary of state modifies the order to show Grange
Lane as a public restricted byway when it is sent to the Planning
Inspectorate for determining.

Reason: All the available evidence indicates that this route was a
public road. Rights for mechanically propelled vehicles were removed
by the NERC Act 2006. However, all other public rights for
pedestrians, horse riders, cyclists, and horse and cart remain.

Background
3. This report is necessarily supplemental to the report presented to the

Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session in December
2009. That report is enclosed among the background papers (please see



Page 108

annex 1). Annex 2 contains a general location map and a map showing
the alignment of the route.

Following the decision made at the 1 December 2009 decision session a
DMMO showing Grange Lane as a footpath was made and duly
publicised between 7 December 2017 and 18 January 2018.

As a result of that consultation, twelve objections and two
representations were received by the council. They can be broken down
into the following three groups:

a. One representation regarding the impact on a proposed housing
development should the route become a public right of way. There
will be no impact on the development.

b. Nine objections from people who do not want Grange Lane to be a
PRoW of any sort.

c. Three objections and one representation from people who think the
evidence shows that the route should be recorded as a restricted

byway.

The objections from those who do not want Grange Lane to be a public
right of way of any sort are understandable. However, none of these
objectors have submitted any evidence to support their claims that the
route carries no public rights. In their current form the inspector
appointed by the secretary of state would set them aside.

The three objections and one representation that contend that the order
route would be more properly recorded as a restricted byway are based
on the existing evidence before the authority.

Having thoroughly reviewed the evidence in the light of these objections,
officers find the argument in favour of recording the way as a public
restricted byway extremely persuasive.

Consultation

9.

Consultations were carried out in strict accordance to schedule 15(3) of
the WCA 1981. Notice was duly served on all affected landowners and
occupiers; in addition notice was also served on those bodies set out in
schedule 6 of The Wildlife and Countryside (Definitive Maps and
Statements) Regulations 1993. Furthermore, as required by the
aforesaid schedule 15(3) notices were erected on the order route and a
notice was inserted into the local newspaper. As well as the statutory
consultations other local interested parties (including local representative
of organisations like the British Horse Society and the Ramblers) also



Page 109

received notices. All parties had 42 days in which to make
representations.

Options

10. Option A. The Executive Member requests that the secretary of state

11.

modifies the order to show Grange Lane as a public restricted byway
when it is sent to the Planning Inspectorate for determining.

Reason: All the available evidence indicates that this route was a public
road. Rights for mechanically propelled vehicles were removed by the
NERC Act 2006. However, all other rights for pedestrians, horse riders,
cyclists, and horse and cart remain.

Option B. The Executive Member instructs officers to submit the order in
its current form.

Reason: This is not recommended, due to all available evidence
indicating that the route is a restricted byway. In its current form
(footpath) the council would be required to defend the indefensible at
any subsequent hearing or public inquiry, leading to possible
reputational damage. In order to mitigate this there may be additional
expense for the council if a rights of way consultant is employed to
represent the council at any hearing or public inquiry the secretary of
state might decide to hold.

Analysis

12.

13.

The inclosure awards provide evidence in support of the existence of
historic public carriageway rights at both ends of Grange Lane. This is
further supplemented by a range of maps etc suggesting the historic
reputation of the route throughout its length as an historic public
carriageway. The documentary evidence indicates that public
carriageway rights exist “in the balance of probabilities” over the full
length of Grange Lane.

As noted at para 6 above, no evidence showing that Grange Lane was
never a public highway has been submitted nor has any been discovered
despite extensive research. Furthermore, no evidence has been
submitted or discovered that the public rights were ever stopped up by a
due process.

14. As the evidence strongly indicates that Grange Lane was a public

highway, it is appropriate to consider the implications of the Natural



Page 110

Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC), with regard to the
extinguishment of public rights for mechanically propelled vehicles.

15. NERC has the effect of extinguishing rights for mechanically propelled
vehicles along such routes, except under the following prescribed
conditions:

“Exceptions in section 67 of the 2006 Act may apply where:

a)

b)

a way whose main use by the public during the period of 5 years
ending with the commencement (of the Act) was used for
mechanically propelled vehicles;

immediately before commencement it was not shown in a definitive
map and statement but was shown in a list required to be kept under
section 36 (6) of the Highways Act 1980 (list of highways maintained
at public expense);

it was created on terms that expressly provide for it to be a right of
way for mechanically propelled vehicles;

it was created by the construction, in exercise of powers conferred
by virtue of any enactment, of a road intended to be used for such
vehicles;

it was created by virtue of use by such vehicles during a period
ending before December 1930. ©

NB: a private right to use mechanically propelled vehicles (to access property
etc.) on routes which previously enjoyed public vehicular rights is retained.

16. There is no evidence to suggest that any of these conditions apply,
therefore it is very likely that the rights for mechanically propelled vehicles
will have been extinguished. Consequently the way should be recorded
on the definitive map is as a restricted byway.

17. No comments have been received from the ward councillors or other
relevant councillors.

Council Plan

18. As set out in the Council Plan 2015-19 “Our purpose is to be a more
responsive and flexible council that puts residents first and meets its
statutory obligations” by submitting this DMMO to the secretary of state
the council is fulfilling one of its statutory obligations.



Page 111

Implications

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Financial
Determination by the Secretary of State may lead to a local public
inquiry. The cost of a public inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the Order is confirmed by the Secretary of State the authority will have
to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense. This will
not, as such, be a new obligation, more the recognition of an existing,
but previously unrecorded liability.

Human Resources (HR)
There are no human resource implications

Equalities
There are no equalities implications

Legal

City of York Council is the Surveying Authority for the purposes of the
WCA 1981, and has a duty to ensure that the Definitive Map and
Statement for its area are kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the
definitive map and statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty
to make the necessary changes using legal orders known as DMMOs.

Before the authority can make a DMMO to add a route to the definitive
map it must be satisfied that the public rights over the route in question
are reasonably alleged to subsist. Where this test has been met, but
there is a conflict in the evidence, the authority are obliged to make an
order in order to allow the evidence to be properly tested through the
statutory order process.

DMMQOs, such as the one being considered within this report, do not
create any new public rights they simply seek to record those already in
existence.

Issues such as safety, security, desirability etc, whilst being genuine
concerns cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO process
requires an authority to look at all the available evidence, both
documentary and user, before making a decision.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications



29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 112

Information Technology (IT)
There are no IT implications

Property
There are no property implications

Other — Maintenance Implications

The evidence indicates that the public rights over Grange Lane were
established prior to the commencement of the Highways Act of 1835,
therefore as an ancient highway it is maintainable at public expense and
should be recorded as such on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public
Expense. There will therefore be an ongoing future maintenance liability
to Highway Maintenance Services. The intention would be to maintain it
fit to the standard required for the status that is recorded on the definitive
map.

Maintenance to a standard suitable for the passage of mechanically
propelled vehicles, in the exercise of private access rights is the
responsibility of those wishing to exercise such rights.

Risk Management

33.

In compliance with the authority’s Risk Management Strategy, Option A
Is subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). Option B is subject
to a greater budgetary pressure (financial) because of the possibility of
employing an outside consultant.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Russell Varley James Gilchrist

Definitive Map Officer Assistant Director Transport Highways and
Rights of Way Environment

Tel No. 01904 553691

Report Date 19.07.18
Approved




Page 113

Wards Affected: Rural West York.

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Highways Act 1980

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006
Grange Lane DMMO case file

Annexes

Annex 1. Report submitted to Decision Session - Executive Member for
City Strategy - 1 December 2009

List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

DMMO Definitive map modification order
NERC Act 2006 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006
PRoW Public right of way

WCA 1981 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115

Annex 1
2 S CITY OF
g COUNCIL
Decision Session 1 December 2009

Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Public Rights of Way - Investigation into the Status of Grange
Lane, Rufforth

Summary

1 This report considers all the available evidence and seeks to assist the
Executive Member in determining whether or not to make a Definitive Map
Modification Order (DMMO) to add Grange Lane in Acomb and Rufforth
(shown by a broken black line on Plan 1, Annex 1), to the Definitive Map of
Public Rights of Way.

Recommendation

2 It is recommended that the Executive Member authorises the making of a
Definitive Map Modification Order to add Grange Lane to the Definitive Map.

Reason: Evidence shows that at a minimum, Public Footpath rights are
reasonably alleged to subsist.

Background

3 The issue of the status of Grange Lane, shown on Plan 1 was identified as a
Definitive Map anomaly (an unrecorded route with possible highway status) in
1981, after the installation of a locked gate triggered the submission to North
Yorkshire County Council (the highway authority at the time), of 6 user
evidence forms claiming that the way was public and that the gate obstructed
the use of the route.

4 In 1996, City of York Council became the highway authority for the area and
inherited a considerable backlog of work relating to the Definitive Map, one of
these issues being the question of the status of Grange Lane. Since that time
there has been steady progress made with regards to outstanding Definitive
Map work, and during this time there have been repeated attempts to resolve
the status of Grange Lane, mainly in order to resolve issues relating to the
Council’s maintenance liability for the surface of the lane after repeated
pressure from one of the landowners affected to improve and maintain the
surface so that is suitable for vehicles.



10.

11.

12.

Page 116 Annex 1

In 200/01 the Council commissioned an independent report to establish
whether any public highway rights existed over Grange Lane. A copy of the
report is included in Annex 3, Tab 2. This report concluded that Grange Lane
was an historic public carriageway and that it should be recorded on the
Definitive Map as a Byway Open to All Traffic.

In response to the findings of the Council’s investigation, another landowner
sought their own independent report as to the status of the route. A copy of
this report is included in Annex 3, Tab 3. The resulting investigation raised
some queries within the Council’s report, relating to the alignment of the old
turnpike road from York to Wetherby.

This report now considers the available relevant evidence (documentary
and/or user) in order to determine the status of Grange Lane, in doing so the
extent of any maintenance liabilities that the Council, as Highway Authority for
the area, may have in respect of the route will also be clarified.

Summary of Evidence

Under Common law there are three types of highway, namely footpaths,
bridleways and carriageways (vehicular highway). Parliament has
subsequently sub-divided the Ilatter category into a number of other
classifications (e.g. Restricted Byways, Byways Open to All Traffic, Cycle
Ways and Motorways).

When determining the status of a route, it must first be decided whether the
evidence suggests that one of the common law definitions applies (i.e.
footpath, bridleway or carriageway). If it is decided that the route is a highway
of carriageway status (i.e. a vehicular highway) further consideration must be
given to which of the sub-divisions, if any, apply.

The DMMO process requires the authority to carry out a detailed search of all
available evidence. A detailed analysis of these documents is included in
Annex 2 and summarised below.

Documentary Evidence

In the case of Grange Lane the following historic documents were examined:
. Acomb & Holgate Inclosure Award 1774 (Annex 3, Tab 4)

. Rufforth Inclosure Map and Award 1795 (Annex 3, Tab 5)

o Map of the Acomb Grange property owned by the Marwood family
1760 (Annex 3, Tab 6)

Eighteenth & Nineteenth Century Commercial Maps (Annex 3, Tab 7)
York to Collingham Turnpike Road (Modern B1224)

Ordnance Survey Maps and Plans (Annex 3, Tab 8)

Ordnance Survey Object Names Books (Annex 3, Tab 9)

1910 Finance Act records (Annex 3, Tab 10)

Wartime closures (Annex 3, Tab 11)

Declarations pursuant to Section 31 (6) of the Highways Act 1980
(Annex 3, Tab 13)



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 117 Annex 1

User Evidence

In 1981 the Ramblers’ Association submitted 6 user evidence forms,
providing evidence of uninterrupted use of Grange Lane between 1921 and
1981, at which time a gate was installed across the lane and the locked. Two
further user evidence forms were submitted in 2001 providing further
evidence of user between 1975 and 2001. Copies of the user evidence are
included in Annex 3, Tab 12.

Analysis of the Documentary and User Evidence

The Inclosure Awards provide evidence in support of the existence of historic
public carriageway rights at both ends of Grange Lane. This is further
supplemented by a range of maps etc suggesting the historic reputation of
the route throughout its length as an historic public carriageway. At the very
least the documentary evidence suggests that public carriageway rights are
‘reasonably alleged to subsist’ over the full length of Grange Lane, as shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1.

In view of this finding, it is appropriate to consider the implications of the
Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006, with regard to the
extinguishment of public rights for mechanically propelled vehicles.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) has the
effect of extinguishing rights for mechanically propelled vehicles along such
routes, except under the following prescribed conditions:

Exceptions in section 67 of the 2006 Act may apply where:-

a) a way whose main use by the public during the period of 5 years ending
with the commencement (of the Act) was used for mechanically propelled
vehicles;

b) immediately before commencement it was not shown in a definitive map
and statement but was shown in a list required to be kept under section 36
(6) of the Highways Act 1980 (list of highways maintained at public
expense);

c) it was created on terms that expressly provide for it to be a right of way for
mechanically propelled vehicles;

d) it was created by the construction, in exercise of powers conferred by
virtue of any enactment, of a road intended to be used for such vehicles;

e) it was created by virtue of use by such vehicles during a period ending
before December 1930.

NB: a private right to use mechanically propelled vehicles (to access property
etc) on routes which previously enjoyed public vehicular rights is retained.

There is no evidence to suggest that any of these conditions apply, therefore
if it is determined that Grange Lane is a public vehicular highway, the rights
for mechanically propelled vehicles will have been extinguished and the most
it could be added to the Definitive Map is as a restricted byway (ie a public
right of way on foot, on horse-back and on non-mechanically propelled
vehicles such as cycles and horse-drawn vehicles).

With regards to the user evidence submitted by the Rambler’s Association,
this would certainly suggest that, if historic carriageway rights do not exist,



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Page 118 Annex 1

there is a case in favour of the establishment of public footpath rights arising
from user prior to the locking of a gate in 1981

Consultation

Consultation has been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s code of practice for consultations on
changes to the rights of way network. Landowners, the Parish Council and
others known to have an interest in the case, have also been consulted.

Any documentary evidence submitted as a result of the consultation exercise
has been included and discussed in detail within the evidential sections of
Annex 2.

Parish Council

Comments were received from Rufforth Parish Council who believe that

Grange Lane is in private ownership with no public rights of way over the

land. They have based their view on:

e the wartime closures

e the status of Grange Lane was investigated when the A1237 ring road
was built; and

e when the land was sold the purchaser had searches done which revealed
that there was no public rights of way along Grange Lane.

Analysis of representations

The wartime closures do not extinguish rights over the whole length of
Grange Lane, they only closed footpath rights over the section now covered
by the airfield. Contrary to the Parish Council’s assertion this would, in fact
suggest that the rest of Grange Lane did enjoy public rights of at least
footpath status. Furthermore, if public carriageway rights do exist, as this
investigation would suggest, then the war-time closures are likely to be void
because they did not extinguish the vehicular/carriageway rights.

With regard to any investigations into the status of Grange Lane when the
A1237 was built including any searches undertaken in connection with the
sale/purchase of land, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary it is
highly unlikely that these investigations and searches went further than a
consultation of the Definitive Map for the area. This would have revealed that
Grange Lane was not registered as a public right of way, nonetheless, this
cannot in any way be properly interpreted as meaning that no public rights
exist. This is because the conclusive status of the Definitive Map is without
prejudice to the existence of any unrecorded highway rights.

Landowners

Indications of objections to any proposed Definitive Map Modification Order
have also been received from an adjoining landowner, and also a land agent
acting on behalf of another landowner. Both dispute the existence of any
public rights along Grange Lane. Copies of correspondence from both
landowner and land agent are included in Annex 3, Tab 15.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Page 119 Annex 1

In 2002/03, in support of their objection one of the landowners sought their
own independent expert opinion on the available evidence (Annex 3, Tab 3),
which raised some queries/anomalies with the original research report
commissioned by the Council (Annex 3, Tab 2).

The landowners also rely upon the fact that the section of Grange Lane,
which used to cross what is now Rufforth Airfield was set out in the Rufforth
Inclosure Award (Annex 3, Tab 5) as a “private or occupation carriage road”.

In 1981, and again in 1994 the landowners also submitted plans and
statements pursuant to Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980.

The matters raised by the landowners have been taken into account within
the evidence as a whole. Their particular concerns are discussed in more
detail in Annex 2 paras 26 to 30 and para 46 respectively.

Ward Councillors and Groups Spokeperson(s)
Their comments, verbatim, are:

Ward Councillors

ClIr lan Gillies: ‘It would appear in the substantial amount of
correspondence, that the person who has complained regarding this Lane,
has an agenda that would see the Authority maintaining the lane. | do have
sympathy with him regarding the amount of fly-tipping he is having to endure,
but his historical expertise and opinion differs to the advice that has been
obtained by the Authority, therefore | am happy to support your
recommendation’.

Clir Healy: No comments received.
Cllr Hudson: No comments received.

Group Spokesperson(s)

Clir Stephen Galloway: “I am familiar with this route which has been used
off and on informally by pedestrians for many years. It is gated at the ring
road end following the death of a young cyclists (why cycled straight into the
path of a vehicle). Establishment as a PROW would be difficult to resist.
There should be no public vehicle or cycle access to the ring road from this
path. It would be a very dangerous junction. | would resist any attempts to
make the Council liable for any maintenance costs”.

Clir Ruth Potter: No comments received.

CliIr lan Gillies: See above.

Clir Andy D’Agorne: “Strongly support this proposal, provided it is designated
as a 'quiet lane' suitable for access and non motorised traffic”.




37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Page 120 Annex 1

Conclusion - status

Taking into account the documentary evidence and user evidence, including
evidence submitted by the objectors, it may be concluded that a minimum,
public footpath rights are, ‘reasonably alleged to subsist’ along Grange Lane.

If it is determined that public carriageway rights are ‘reasonably alleged to
subsist’, then having considered the provisions of the Natural Environment &
Rural Communities Act 2006 it has also been concluded that, as none of the
exceptions apply, public rights for mechanically propelled vehicles will have
been extinguished. It would therefore be appropriate to record the route on
the Definitive Map as a Restricted Byway.

Options
Options available when determining this issue are.

Option A: If having considered all of the available evidence, it is determined
that Restricted Byway rights subsist, or are reasonably alleged to subsist, the
Executive Member may

a) Grant authorisation to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add
the Restricted Byway shown on Plan 1 to the Definitive Map;

b) If no objections are received or any objections that are received are
subsequently withdrawn the Order, made in accordance with a) above,
be confirmed; or,

c) If objections are received and are not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be referred to the Secretary of State for determination.

d) If the Order is confirmed the route be added to the List of Streets
Maintainable at Public Expense and maintained in accordance with its
status.

Option B: If it is determined that Footpath rights subsist, or are reasonably
alleged to subsist, the Executive Member may:

a) Grant authorisation to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add
the Footpath shown on Plan 1 to the Definitive Map;

b) If no objections are received or any objections that are received are
subsequently withdrawn the Order, made in accordance with a) above,
be confirmed; or,

c) If objections are received and are not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be referred to the Secretary of State for determination.

d) If the Order is confirmed the route be added to the List of Streets
Maintainable at Public Expense and maintained in accordance with its
status.

Option C: If having considered all of the available evidence, it is determined
that the case in support of a Definitive Map Modification Order has not been
made, or has been overturned by contrary evidence, then the Executive
Member may determine that:



43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 121 Annex 1

a) no further action be taken.
b) the Authority does not undertake any maintenance work on the lane

Corporate Priorities

The addition of Grange Lane to the Definitive Map is purely an asset
recording exercise. However, should it be determined that there is enough
evidence to add the route to the Definitive Map, the benefits of doing so
would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities of making York a Sustainable
City and also a Healthy City, as the route could be used for sustainable, car-
free, health and recreation purposes.

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to a Definitive Map Modification Order it will have to be
advertised in the local press. The cost of advertising the Order would be in
the region of £1500. If an Order is made, and no objections are received the
Order will be confirmed and re-advertised, again at a cost of £1500.

If objections to the Order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
Order would have to be decided by the Secretary of State, probably at a local
public inquiry. The cost of a public inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the Order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State as a
result of a Public Inquiry, the authority will have to accept that the route is
maintainable at the public expense. This will not, as such, be a new
obligation, more so the recognition of an existing, but previously unrecorded
liability.

Human Resources (HR)
There are no human resource implications

Equalities
There are no equalities implications

Legal

City of York Council is the Surveying Authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a duty to ensure that the Definitive Map
and Statement for its area are kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive
Map and Statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the
necessary changes using legal Orders known as Definitive Map Modification
Orders (DMMO).

Before the Council can make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a
route to the Definitive Map it must be satisfied that the public rights over the
route in question are reasonably alleged to subsist. Where this test has been
met, but there is a conflict in the evidence, the Authority are obliged to make



52.

52.

53.

54.

59.

56.

S7.

58.

Page 122 Annex 1

an Order so as to allow the evidence to be properly tested through the Order
making process.

DMMGOs, such as the one being considered within this report, do not create
any new public rights they simply seek to record those already in existence.
Issues such as safety, security, desirability etc, whilst being genuine concerns
cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO process requires an authority
to look at all the available evidence, both documentary and user, before
making a decision.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications

Information Technology (IT)
There are no IT implications

Property
There are no property implications

Other — Maintenance Implications

The evidence indicates that the public rights over Grange Lane were
established prior to the commencement of the Highways Act of 1835,
therefore as an ancient highway it is maintainable at public expense and
should be recorded as such on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public
Expense. There will therefore be an ongoing future maintenance liability to
Highway Maintenance Services. The intention would be to maintain it fit for
purpose in its present condition.

Maintenance to a standard suitable for the passage of mechanically propelled
vehicles, in the exercise of private access rights is the responsibility of those
wishing to exercise such rights.

Another concern is that access is being allowed to the side of the A1237 at a
point where traffic speeds are 60mph. In order to deter children / pedestrians
/ cyclists etc from entering straight onto the A 1237, it is suggested that
holding areas are created with barriers. Due to existing carriageway width
there is no room for a carriageway centre refuge.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’'s Risk Management Strategy, Options A and
B are subject to internal budgetary pressures (Financial), There are no risks
associated with option C. If the issue of the status of Grange Lane is not
properly resolved there is the risk that the Authority will be failing its statutory
duties to assert, protect, maintain and properly record public highways; and
have action initiated against it accordingly.



Page 123

Annex 1
Contact Details
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Alison Newbould Damon Copperthwaite
(PROW Officer) Assistant Director
Network Management (City Development & Transport)
(City Development & Transport)
Tel No. 01904 551481 Report Approved | . Date 17 November 2009

Co-Author’s Name
Robin Carr Associates
(PROW Consultant)
Tel No: 01609 781717

Report Approved | fick Date Insert Date

Wards Affected: All
Rural West York

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Highways Act 1980

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006
PROW (R)/Grange Lane

Annexes

Annex 1: Plan 1 - Plan showing the route under investigation

Annex 2: Discussion of Evidence

Annex 3: Bundle of Evidence (Tabs 1 to 16) Available to view at Guildhall
Reception, in the Member’s Library and on the M:Drive (All Members — City Strategy
— PROW Grange Lane, Rufforth)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

§“l@%§i
s SENIAZE

Poppleton 4| =

\'}'-g_}} = .':?‘_I':___‘\ Lk~
o) PobplEten., L3

S

ol w KG.!"':} o
p{;nge Frn yy d‘;\ \,—-
i LG [
o i = J'
Iotel

- il
_al
ham_Ej %
- S ot jnaptnn
g .

P Sl
e
i
%1 s
[
=

B4

N \\ 7
=l A N B 5§
3 : - T i
Y, 2 ¢ Rdereh NG, “owioodhouse
[\ 'n,l - -.1‘" range s
. M k! .
i o ¥ fa

"% 4 Hagg HQU:S

b oS

L |
1" . ll"l. 4
) #

o

Askham

£

. Richard “,::5;
N o
b b

26

o

o = - fi [ - B o ]
AT 0l ol | I P o il a0 =N e

5
i

S
il | T s

. =i W e ek SN
Yol cailk ﬂ" ‘ 22l \ -6
P == L O ESALR  de E A A - )
brmans J,\ "ﬁ “E’ % L e * [ ‘l = —- %"J{f m _f,r' ! ;
\ ﬁai > OO ‘\' I * 5—@/ | /t
e #] e [ Ly A
Lt N P = i ey o be Fro
. I — aldt =3 Ty " i‘ e R
Bilbrough \:.g;'ﬂ O S ‘ =T Gl - 4
o Lan” A A W fsRpanthorpe | |
PN .
YCOIiK Location of Grange Lane
S COUNCIL Scale 1:35,000 Drawn By:RJV Date:18/7/18
West Offices, Station Rise, York, Public Rights of Way Reference: Drawing No.

YO16GA
Telephone: 01904 551550

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2018




455000

456000

B1224

-

==

\ Drain
= “‘
o o
g P Mz \ % g
b 0 R b
"v’ \ Drain g \ The Grange \ ")Q.‘ e -Ul—n‘r
S T ) Yo
| -t < [ =
! tom ERE : : WV A [T
‘| 2 Drain ;,,7 g _ o " I ‘i/\ /575 - A_!I
"’ =233 K range Lane - -J“ (e ssssuEER P‘v"\Aw 1( G H
E_E.} A \ k ‘ff\ N
. \ &g (ol »
/ < \ /
2\ \ /
A ‘ Acomb _* -
// ,', \ G i'
7, Mast 7% -
@tf g = | W= Tane S . “ 2
N el .
Broadlane \‘\,% a Z
Y Farm N
II O
/ 4
nnnni Order Route / |
A VY .§
a
ZS®  ciTy of GRANGE LANE TO RUFFORTH AIRFIELD
YORK MODIFICATION ORDER 2010
S COUNCIL Scale 1:7,500 Drawn By:RJV Date:27/11/17 . Acomnb Moor /Q\\
West Offices, Station Rise, York, Public Rights of Way Reference: Drawing No. & D RAFT
YO16GA
Telephone: 01904 551550 Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017
455000

456000



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 EPetition: Approve More Houses for Lower Income Residents in York
	Annex A Petititon re More Affordable homes for Lower Income Families
	Annex B Afforable Housing interim targets
	Annex C Local Plan Publication Draft 2018 Policy Extracts

	5 Consideration of Two Residents Parking Petitions: Main, First & Second Avenues and Balmoral Terrace
	6 Strensall to Haxby - Danger Reduction Scheme
	Annex A_Briefing Note
	Annex B1_Location Plan TP_170017_RP
	Sheets and Views
	Route Plan


	Annex B2_Extracts 1-8
	Sheets and Views
	Extract 1
	Extract 2
	Extract 3
	Extract 4
	Extract 5
	Extract 6
	Extract 7
	Extract 8


	Annex C_Amended Scheme
	Sheets and Views
	Route Plan
	Extract 1
	Extract 2A
	Extract 3A
	Extract 4A
	Extract 5A
	Extract 6A
	Extract 7
	Extract 8A



	7 Consideration of results from the consultation in Sussex Road and immediate area following a petition received requesting Residents' Priority Parking
	Annex A consulted area and proposed boundary plan
	ANNEX B - Letter to resdients 18518
	ANNEX C respark information
	ANNEX D Sussex Road results
	ANNEX E Précis of comments received

	8 Submission of Definitive Map Modification Order "The Council of the City of York Public Footpath, Knapton No.4 (Grange Lane to Rufforth Airfield)"to the Secretary of State for Determining also requests that the Secretary of State change the Order Route from Footpath to Restricted Byway.
	Annex 1 report 1 Dec 2009
	Annex 2 maps
	2018 Location map
	2017 Consultation Map





